
Glossary

Japan’s Drug Pricing System

In Japan, official prices (NHI (National Health Insurance) drug price standards) for pharmaceuticals that can be used for insured medical treatments are 

stipulated by the Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare and the Central Social Insurance Medical Council. Medical institutions and dispensing pharmacies 

bill the cost of pharmaceuticals used by patients at the official prices. However, delivery prices of pharmaceuticals sold to medical institutions and 

dispensing pharmacies by pharmaceutical wholesalers are the prevailing prices set by the market. The official prices of prescription pharmaceuticals have 

until now been revised once every two years, in principle, to reflect market prices, but revision every year is being considered for the future.

Data Section

A

●	� ALC: Area Logistics Center 
A state-of-the-art distribution center in the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business. ALCs 
provide highly functional logistics services to healthcare institutions, including a large selection of 
pharmaceuticals and related items, high shipping accuracy, Saturday delivery, and partial lot sales.

●	� AR: Assist Representatives A MEDIPAL Group employee who has passed the MR qualification exam and is engaged full-time in 
businesses such as PFM®.

●	� AUPUS: �Automatic Piece Picking  
Ultimate System

A next-generation logistics system that automates product storage, issuing, and sorting.

D

●  DMR： �Diagnostics Medical  
Information Representatives

Person in charge of diagnostics medical information.

●  DS： Delivery Specialist Person in charge of deliveries in the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business.

F

●	� FLC: Front Logistics Center 
A distribution and sales base that can provide the same quality of service as ALCs. To make our 
logistics services available to all healthcare institutions nationwide, FLCs operate mainly in areas that 
ALCs cannot cover directly.

M

●	� McHIL®:  Mediceo Hospital  
Innovative Logistics

A system that applies ALC functions and know-how to logistics in hospitals. Supports improvement 
of efficiency in hospital logistics operations.

●	� MR: Medical Representatives Person in charge of drug information at pharmaceutical companies.

●	� MS: Marketing Specialist Person in charge of sales in the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business.

●	� MUPPS:  Multitaskcrane Piece  
Picking System

A newly developed crane-based product-picking system.
	 The system moves products to the location of the worker, thereby eliminating the need to walk 
and find each product with a cart. This system doubles productivity.

P

●	� PFM®: Project Finance & Marketing 
PFM® is a business model developed by MEDIPAL. We invest in orphan drugs in the development 
stage and supply them to healthcare providers through preferential marketing rights after they  
are launched.

●	� PMS: Post Marketing Surveillance 
Surveillance that the Japanese government requires companies to conduct after launching 
pharmaceuticals to verify their quality, efficacy, and safety. PMS consists of early post-marketing 
phase vigilance and Post-Marketing Surveillance.

●	� PRESUS®:  Pharmacy Real-time           
Support System

An all-in-one system that functions together with ALCs to conduct automatic ordering and inventory 
management based on demand forecasts. This system supports the various operations of 
dispensing pharmacies.

R

●	� RDC: Regional Distribution Center Large-scale distribution centers that PALTAC operates nationwide. RDCs handle cosmetics, daily 
necessities, over-the-counter pharmaceuticals and other items.

S

●	� SPAID:  Super Productivity Advanced  
Innovative Distribution

A proprietary developed total-management and operation system for next-generation logistics 
centers based on the adoption of AI, cutting-edge robot technology, or MUPPS. This system yields 
twice the volume of conventional systems with the same number of workers.

 

●	 Inspection by individual scans 
A method shortening product inspection time by switching from the conventional method of 
reading packing slips to scanning information for individual products from barcodes on the  
delivery boxes.

● Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business
● Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business
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Eleven-Year Financial Highlights

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S. dollars (Note)

2011/3 2012/3 2013/3 2014/3 2015/3 2016/3 2017/3 2018/3 2019/3 2020/3 2021/3 2021/3

Sales and Income:

Net sales ¥2,662,822 ¥2,750,233 ¥2,810,960 ¥2,947,799 ¥2,872,906 ¥3,028,187 ¥3,063,901 ¥3,146,314 ¥3,181,929 ¥3,253,079 ¥3,211,125 $29,004,833

Gross profit 188,147 192,568 202,142 209,358 201,736 217,497 219,019 228,100 232,503 236,739 214,259 1,935,318

Selling, general and  
  administrative expenses 174,598 171,677 173,622 174,695 168,941 175,214 179,369 183,839 182,675 183,629 175,683 1,586,876

Operating profit 13,549 20,891 28,520 34,663 32,795 42,283 39,650 44,261 49,828 53,110 38,576 348,442

Ordinary profit 22,889 31,548 39,643 49,778 44,476 55,141 53,360 57,349 63,914 68,020 52,969 478,448

Profit attributable to owners of parent 1,705 11,651 18,656 25,485 23,688 30,772 29,012 34,781 34,359 37,968 23,927 216,123

Depreciation 12,158 12,661 12,619 13,147 12,326 12,391 13,573 14,898 13,452 14,233 14,468 130,684

Capital expenditures 22,708 16,678 21,307 24,743 15,168 38,395 44,884 20,653 19,361 29,322 16,141 145,795

 
Financial Position:

Total assets ¥1,284,680 ¥1,274,411 ¥1,328,601 ¥1,400,792 ¥1,454,800 ¥1,497,310 ¥1,525,912 ¥1,618,819 ¥1,617,911 ¥1,644,279 ¥1,679,935 $15,174,194

Total net assets 340,984 354,344 381,892 407,481 457,604 488,329 521,165 572,656 592,848 607,424 638,934 5,771,240

 
Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating activities ¥     49,474 ¥      (1,988) ¥     61,769 ¥           (73) ¥     80,467 ¥     21,985 ¥     47,955 ¥     63,559 ¥     63,716 ¥     56,917 ¥     34,449 $     311,164

Cash flows from investing activities (24,101) (12,166) (15,841) (28,066) (11,834) (41,267) (11,355) (43,065) (23,513) (13,319) (2,939) (26,547)

Cash flows from financing activities (10,101) (7,252) (14,379) (2,834) (19,835) 6,093 (17,663) 15,845 (30,755) (49,068) (16,003) (144,549)

Free cash flow 25,373 (14,154) 45,928 (28,139) 68,633 (19,282) 36,600 20,494 40,203 43,598 31,509 284,608

 
Per Share:

Basic earnings ¥         7.27 ¥       49.60 ¥       82.24 ¥     112.77 ¥     104.73 ¥     135.89 ¥     128.12 ¥     154.13 ¥     154.09 ¥     175.80 ¥     113.96 $         1.029

Total net assets 1,275.94 1,329.60 1,433.19 1,529.63 1,722.56 1,832.45 1,950.25 2,154.93 2,233.52 2,382.88 2,490.98 22.500

Cash dividends 18.00 18.00 20.00 23.00 24.00 28.00 31.00 34.00 38.00 41.00 42.00 0.379

 
Ratios (%):

Ratio of gross profit to sales 7.1 7.0 7.2 7.1 7.0 7.2 7.1 7.3 7.3 7.3 6.7

Profit ratio 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.1 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.2 

Net worth ratio 23.30 24.34 24.33 24.69 26.81 27.71 28.94 29.89 30.71 30.43 31.13 

Return on equity 0.58 3.82 5.89 7.62 6.44 7.65 6.77 7.51 7.00 7.62 4.68 

Return on assets 1.92 2.51 3.09 3.68 3.14 3.76 3.55 3.66 3.96 4.18 3.19 

Payout ratio 247.7 36.3 24.3 20.4 22.9 20.6 24.2 22.1 24.7 23.3 36.9 

 
Number of employees 11,661 11,194 11,115 10,930 10,930 10,959 13,252* 14,151 13,868 13,599 12,971

Note: �The U.S. dollar amounts in this report represent translations of Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥110.71 to U.S. $1.00, the approximate exchange rate on March 
31, 2021. Yen amounts on all pages except for the Financial Statements are rounded down to the nearest million yen. Yen amounts in the Financial Statements are rounded to  
the nearest million yen.

* �The main reason for the increase in employees in comparison to the end of the previous fiscal year is the partial change to employment practices, with a new system being introduced 
on October 1, 2016.

MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORRPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31
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Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S. dollars (Note)

2011/3 2012/3 2013/3 2014/3 2015/3 2016/3 2017/3 2018/3 2019/3 2020/3 2021/3 2021/3

Sales and Income:

Net sales ¥2,662,822 ¥2,750,233 ¥2,810,960 ¥2,947,799 ¥2,872,906 ¥3,028,187 ¥3,063,901 ¥3,146,314 ¥3,181,929 ¥3,253,079 ¥3,211,125 $29,004,833

Gross profit 188,147 192,568 202,142 209,358 201,736 217,497 219,019 228,100 232,503 236,739 214,259 1,935,318

Selling, general and  
  administrative expenses 174,598 171,677 173,622 174,695 168,941 175,214 179,369 183,839 182,675 183,629 175,683 1,586,876

Operating profit 13,549 20,891 28,520 34,663 32,795 42,283 39,650 44,261 49,828 53,110 38,576 348,442

Ordinary profit 22,889 31,548 39,643 49,778 44,476 55,141 53,360 57,349 63,914 68,020 52,969 478,448

Profit attributable to owners of parent 1,705 11,651 18,656 25,485 23,688 30,772 29,012 34,781 34,359 37,968 23,927 216,123

Depreciation 12,158 12,661 12,619 13,147 12,326 12,391 13,573 14,898 13,452 14,233 14,468 130,684

Capital expenditures 22,708 16,678 21,307 24,743 15,168 38,395 44,884 20,653 19,361 29,322 16,141 145,795

 
Financial Position:

Total assets ¥1,284,680 ¥1,274,411 ¥1,328,601 ¥1,400,792 ¥1,454,800 ¥1,497,310 ¥1,525,912 ¥1,618,819 ¥1,617,911 ¥1,644,279 ¥1,679,935 $15,174,194

Total net assets 340,984 354,344 381,892 407,481 457,604 488,329 521,165 572,656 592,848 607,424 638,934 5,771,240

 
Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating activities ¥     49,474 ¥      (1,988) ¥     61,769 ¥           (73) ¥     80,467 ¥     21,985 ¥     47,955 ¥     63,559 ¥     63,716 ¥     56,917 ¥     34,449 $     311,164

Cash flows from investing activities (24,101) (12,166) (15,841) (28,066) (11,834) (41,267) (11,355) (43,065) (23,513) (13,319) (2,939) (26,547)

Cash flows from financing activities (10,101) (7,252) (14,379) (2,834) (19,835) 6,093 (17,663) 15,845 (30,755) (49,068) (16,003) (144,549)

Free cash flow 25,373 (14,154) 45,928 (28,139) 68,633 (19,282) 36,600 20,494 40,203 43,598 31,509 284,608

 
Per Share:

Basic earnings ¥         7.27 ¥       49.60 ¥       82.24 ¥     112.77 ¥     104.73 ¥     135.89 ¥     128.12 ¥     154.13 ¥     154.09 ¥     175.80 ¥     113.96 $         1.029

Total net assets 1,275.94 1,329.60 1,433.19 1,529.63 1,722.56 1,832.45 1,950.25 2,154.93 2,233.52 2,382.88 2,490.98 22.500

Cash dividends 18.00 18.00 20.00 23.00 24.00 28.00 31.00 34.00 38.00 41.00 42.00 0.379

 
Ratios (%):

Ratio of gross profit to sales 7.1 7.0 7.2 7.1 7.0 7.2 7.1 7.3 7.3 7.3 6.7

Profit ratio 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.2 1.1 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.2 

Net worth ratio 23.30 24.34 24.33 24.69 26.81 27.71 28.94 29.89 30.71 30.43 31.13 

Return on equity 0.58 3.82 5.89 7.62 6.44 7.65 6.77 7.51 7.00 7.62 4.68 

Return on assets 1.92 2.51 3.09 3.68 3.14 3.76 3.55 3.66 3.96 4.18 3.19 

Payout ratio 247.7 36.3 24.3 20.4 22.9 20.6 24.2 22.1 24.7 23.3 36.9 

 
Number of employees 11,661 11,194 11,115 10,930 10,930 10,959 13,252* 14,151 13,868 13,599 12,971

Note: �The U.S. dollar amounts in this report represent translations of Japanese yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥110.71 to U.S. $1.00, the approximate exchange rate on March 
31, 2021. Yen amounts on all pages except for the Financial Statements are rounded down to the nearest million yen. Yen amounts in the Financial Statements are rounded to  
the nearest million yen.

* �The main reason for the increase in employees in comparison to the end of the previous fiscal year is the partial change to employment practices, with a new system being introduced 
on October 1, 2016.

Data Section
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Financial Review

 Management Environment and Strategies

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, challenging conditions 
prevailed in the Japanese economy due to the impact of COVID-19. 
As a business that handles pharmaceutical products and daily 
necessities, the MEDIPAL Group is required to continue its 
operations under any circumstances. The MEDIPAL Group is 
devoting its full efforts to supporting people’s lives and lifestyles 
based on its unchanging mission of providing steady supplies of 
products at any time.
	 The MEDIPAL Group is implementing initiatives in line with its 
“2022 MEDIPAL Medium-Term Vision: Change the Oroshi Future – 

Innovation for the Future,” a vision aimed at a new Oroshi business 
model that benefits society with distribution in the fields of 
pharmaceuticals, health, and beauty, to prepare for changes in the 
social environment. The MEDIPAL Group will carry out further 
innovation in existing businesses and shift new businesses from the 
“creation” stage to the “expansion” stage. At the same time, the 
MEDIPAL Group will build new frameworks that benefit customers 
and society through partnerships with companies in various fields, 
and by doing so, aims to further expand its earnings foundation 
and achieve sustainable growth.

 Overview of Sales and Income

 Segment Profit or Loss     Note: Segment sales include intersegment sales and transfers.

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales decreased 1.3% year on year to ¥3,211,125 
million. In the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business, sales 
decreased 1.4% year on year in challenging market conditions 
caused by the NHI (National Health Insurance) drug price reduction 
implemented on April 1, 2020 and fewer visits to medical doctors and 
surgeries due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In the Cosmetics, Daily 
Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business, sales 

decreased 1.3% year on year. In the Animal Health Products and 
Food Processing Raw Materials Wholesale Business sales increased 
1.1% year on year.

Operating Profit

Operating profit decreased 27.4% year on year to ¥38,576 million. 
The operating profit ratio was down 0.4 percentage points from the 
previous fiscal year at 1.2%. The main factor in this decline was a 
substantial decrease in operating profit in the Prescription 
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business. The ratio of gross profit to sales 
declined 0.6 percentage points from the previous fiscal year to 6.7%. 
The ratio of selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses to 
sales was 5.5%, a decline of 0.2% from the previous fiscal year.

Ordinary Profit and Profit Attributable to Owners of Parent

Ordinary profit decreased 22.1% year on year to ¥52,969 million. 
Profit attributable to owners of parent decreased 37.0% year on year 
to ¥23,927 million because MEDIPAL recorded a gain on sales of 
investment securities in extraordinary income and extra retirement 
payments in extraordinary losses. 

In the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business, market 
conditions were difficult due to the NHI drug price reduction 
implemented on April 1, 2020 and fewer visits to medical doctors and 
surgeries due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

	 As a result, net sales in this segment decreased 1.4% year on 
year to ¥2,112,455 million, and operating profit decreased 59.6% year 
on year to ¥10,523 million.

■ Net Sales, Operating Profit and Operating Profit Ratio
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■ Net Sales, Operating Profit and Operating Profit RatioPrescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31 2020 2021

Net sales ¥2,141,828 ¥2,112,455

Operating profit 26,055 10,523

Assets 1,143,160 1,143,993

Depreciation 8,642 8,326

Capital expenditures 10,333 10,699
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■ Net Sales, Operating Profit and Operating Profit Ratio ■ Net Sales, Operating Profit and Operating Profit Ratio

In the Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical 
Wholesale Business, demand for hygiene-related products such as 
masks, hand soap, and disinfectants increased in tandem with rising 
awareness of hygiene. However, demand for cosmetics such as 
make-up and haircare products is decreasing because the number of 
people going out for leisure or other reasons has been restrained. In 
addition, demand for products that were popular among foreign 
tourists visiting Japan – such as facial masks – remains very low 
because there are still no prospects for the number of foreign 
tourists in the country to return to previous levels.
	 As a result, net sales in this segment decreased 1.3% year on 
year to ¥1,033,276 million, but operating profit increased 3.2% year 
on year to ¥25,475 million.

In the Animal Health Products and Food Processing Raw Materials 
Wholesale Business, sales of animal health products were affected 
by a widespread outbreak of avian influenza in the livestock market, 
but remained firm due to expanding use of MP+, a proprietary 
online ordering system for veterinary hospitals in the companion 
animal market. 
	 Sales of food processing raw materials were challenged by the 
loss of some existing accounts due to the slump in the restaurant and 
tourism industries caused by the impact of COVID-19, although new 
accounts increased.
	 As a result, net sales in this segment increased 1.1% year  
on year to ¥69,146 million. Operating profit increased 16.7% to 
¥2,309 million.

Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical 
Wholesale Business

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31 2020 2021

Net sales ¥1,046,413 ¥1,033,276

Operating profit 24,681 25,475

Assets 413,817 431,466

Depreciation 5,058 5,640

Capital expenditures 18,792 5,353

Animal Health Products and Food Processing Raw Materials 
Wholesale Business

(Millions of yen)

Years ended March 31 2020 2021

Net sales ¥68,405 ¥69,146

Operating profit 1,979 2,309

Assets 25,211 26,338

Depreciation 247 244

Capital expenditures 168 89

 Overview of Financial Position

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets

Assets
As of March 31, 2021, total assets were ¥1,679,935 million, an 
increase of ¥35,656 million from the end of the previous fiscal year. 
Total current assets were ¥1,174,114 million, an increase of ¥27,935 
million, primarily because cash and deposits increased ¥15,203 
million, notes and accounts receivable–trade increased ¥13,044 
million, merchandise and finished goods increased ¥4,470 million 
and income taxes receivable (included in “Other”) decreased ¥5,450 
million. Total non-current assets increased ¥7,721 million from the 
end of the previous fiscal year to ¥505,821 million, primarily because 
total property, plant and equipment decreased ¥3,988 million and 
total investments and other assets increased ¥12,568 million.

Liabilities
As of March 31, 2021, liabilities totaled ¥1,041,001 million, an 
increase of ¥4,146 million from the end of the previous fiscal year. 
Current liabilities increased ¥7,235 million from the end of the 

previous fiscal year to ¥952,835 million, primarily because notes and 
accounts payable–trade increased ¥16,391 million, current portion of 
long-term borrowings decreased ¥3,208 million, and income taxes 
payable decreased ¥5,467 million. Total non-current liabilities 
decreased ¥3,089 million from the end of the previous fiscal year to 
¥88,166 million, primarily because net defined benefit liability 
decreased ¥2,773 million.

Net Assets
As of March 31, 2021, total net assets were ¥638,934 million, an 
increase of ¥31,510 million from the end of the previous fiscal year. 
This was mainly due to an increase of ¥14,729 million in retained 
earnings, an increase of ¥5,645 million in valuation difference on 
available-for-sale securities, and an increase of ¥8,814 million in 
non-controlling interests. 
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As of March 31, 2021, cash and cash equivalents (cash) totaled 
¥240,048 million, an increase of ¥15,507 million from the end of  
the previous fiscal year.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥34,449 million,  
a decrease of ¥22,468 million from the previous fiscal year. The 
principal factors were profit before income taxes of ¥49,237 million, 
depreciation of ¥14,468 million, an increase in notes and accounts 
receivable–trade of ¥12,683 million, an increase of ¥4,285 million in 
inventories, an increase of ¥16,391 million in notes and accounts 
payable–trade, payment of ¥10,593 million in extra retirement 
payments, and income taxes paid of ¥15,145 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was ¥2,939 million, a decrease 
of ¥10,380 million from the previous fiscal year. The principal  
factors were ¥12,842 million for the purchase of property, plant  
and equipment and proceeds of ¥14,661 million from sale and 
redemption of investment securities.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities was ¥16,003 million, a decrease 
of ¥33,065 million from the previous fiscal year. The principal factors 
were repayments of long-term borrowings of ¥3,558 million and 
cash dividends paid of ¥11,068 million.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, ROE decreased by 2.9 
percentage points from the previous fiscal year to 4.7%, while ROA 
decreased by 1.0 percentage points to 3.2%. The decrease in ROE 
was due primarily to a decrease in return on sales.

■ ROE/ROA
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* ROA is calculated by using “Ordinary profit + Interest expenses” as the denominator.

■ �Cash Flows
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 Overview of Cash Flows

 Capital Efficiency
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Capital expenditures for the MEDIPAL Group in the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2021 totaled ¥16,141 million, including ¥13,365 
million for capital investments and ¥2,776 million for investment in 
software, mainly in the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale 
Business and the Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC 
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business to further reinforce logistics 
functions and enhance efficiency. The Company funded capital 
expenditures using internal capital resources.
	 Major investments included capital investments of ¥8,073 
million for renovation of the Tokyo Logistics Center of MEDICEO 
CORPORATION and construction of the Hiroshima ALC of 
EVERLTH Co., Ltd. in the Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale 
Business, investment in software of ¥2,625 million for integration of 
the mainframe systems for sales and logistics, as well as capital 
investments of ¥5,247 million for PALTAC CORPORATION’s 

construction of a logistics center in Nogi-machi, Shimotsuga-gun, 
Tochigi Prefecture in the Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC 
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business.
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 Dividend Policy

 Outlook for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2022

The Company considers returns to shareholders one of its highest 
management priorities. The Company’s basic policy for the 
distribution of profits is to provide dividends that are linked to 
profits from business activities, while securing the necessary internal 
reserves to strengthen its financial position and aggressively 
expand its businesses.
	 The Company’s basic policy is to pay dividends twice a year, an 
interim and a fiscal year-end dividend from retained earnings. The 
amount of these dividends is decided by the Board of Directors.
	 Based on consideration of the Company’s financial condition 
during the fiscal year under review and other factors, the Board has 
set cash dividends applicable to the fiscal year at ¥42.00 per share, 
including an interim dividend of ¥21.00 per share and year-end cash 
dividend of ¥21.00 per share. As a result, the consolidated payout 
ratio for the period ended March 31, 2021 was 36.9%.
	 Internal reserves will be used effectively for the purpose of 
promoting innovations aimed at strengthening and expanding 
business to cope with change and other objectives. In executing a 
flexible capital policy that responds to changes in the corporate 
environment, the Company will appropriately make repurchases of 
its own shares, taking into account its financial condition, stock 
price, and other factors.

	 For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022, the Company plans 
to pay dividends of ¥42 per share, consisting of an interim and a 
year-end dividend of ¥21 per share each.
	 Going forward, the Company will continue its basic approach 
of distribution of profits and will strive to maintain stable dividends 
with a target consolidated payout ratio of 30% based on its new 
vision, “2022 MEDIPAL Medium-Term Vision: Change the Oroshi 
Future – Innovation for the Future,” announced on May 15, 2019.

The operating companies of the MEDIPAL Group handle products 
that are essential to people’s safe, secure lives. A stable supply of 
these products is therefore necessary, whether in ordinary times or 
during emergencies. The end of the COVID-19 pandemic remains 
uncertain, but the MEDIPAL Group will continue to fulfill its role as 
a part of the social infrastructure. At the same time, the MEDIPAL 
Group will continue initiatives in each business that reflect its new 

vision, “2022 MEDIPAL Medium-Term Vision: Change the Oroshi 
Future – Innovation for the Future.” By doing so, for the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2022, the MEDIPAL Group expects net sales of 
¥3,229,000 million, operating profit of ¥43,000 million, ordinary 
profit of ¥58,000 million and profit attributable to owners of parent 
of ¥29,200 million.

0

20

30

50

40

0

40

50

20

2017/3 2018/3 2019/3 2020/3 2021/3

(Yen) (%)

Annual cash dividends per share (left scale) 
Consolidated dividend payout ratio (right scale)

24.2 22.1 24.7

36.9
31.0

34.0
38.0

42.0

23.3

41.0

10

30

10

■ Cash Dividends per Share and Dividend Payout Ratio

 Capital Expenditures

MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION Integrated Report 2021 79



MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION Integrated Report 202180

Consolidated Balance Sheets
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)

ASSETS 2021 2020 2021

Current assets:

	 Cash and deposits (Notes 5, 6 and 17) ¥   222,748 ¥   207,545 $  2,011,995

	 Notes and accounts receivable–trade (Note 5) 702,188 689,144 6,342,589

	 Securities (Note 5) 18,770 18,770 169,542

	 Merchandise and finished goods 155,593 151,123 1,405,411

	 Accounts receivable–other (Note 5) 65,077 65,112 587,815

	 Other 10,147 14,945 91,653

	 Allowance for doubtful accounts (409) (460) (3,694) 

			   Total current assets 1,174,114 1,146,179 10,605,311

Property, plant and equipment (Note 11):

	 Buildings and structures (Notes 9 and 10) 196,282 196,029 1,772,938

	 Machinery, equipment and vehicles (Notes 10 and 13) 67,635 66,798 610,920

	 Land (Notes 9, 10 and 12) 121,279 120,596 1,095,466

	 Construction in progress 5,235 3,510 47,286

	 Other (Note 9) 26,255 26,201 237,151

			   Total property, plant and equipment 416,686 413,134 3,763,761

	 Accumulated depreciation (155,097) (147,557) (1,400,930)

			   Property, plant and equipment, net 261,589 265,577 2,362,831

Intangible assets:

	 Software 7,031 8,167 63,508

	 Other 3,154 2,877 28,489

			   Total intangible assets 10,185 11,044 91,997

Investments and other assets:

	 Investment securities (Notes 5, 7 and 17):

		  Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates 53,375 50,141 482,115

		  Other 151,345 145,486 1,367,040

	 Long-term loans receivable (Note 5) 113 116 1,021

	 Deferred tax assets (Note 20) 2,451 5,161 22,139

	 Net defined benefit asset (Note 16) 7,455 4,332 67,338

	 Other assets:

		  Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associates
		   (investment in capital of subsidiaries and associates) 5,933 6,152 53,590

		  Others 14,243 11,107 128,652

	 Allowance for doubtful accounts (868) (1,016) (7,840)

			   Total investments and other assets 234,047 221,479 2,114,055

Total assets ¥1,679,935 ¥1,644,279 $15,174,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION Integrated Report 2021 81

Data Section

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2021 2020 2021

Current liabilities:

	 Notes and accounts payable–trade (Notes 5 and 17) ¥   900,015 ¥   883,624 $  8,129,482

	 Current portion of long-term borrowings (Notes 5 and 14) 350 3,558 3,161

	 Income taxes payable 7,539 13,006 68,097

	 Provision for bonuses 7,032 8,502 63,517

	 Provision for sales returns 510 557 4,607

	 Provision for loss on disaster 363 — 3,279

	 Other 37,026 36,353 334,442

		  Total current liabilities 952,835 945,600 8,606,585

Non-current liabilities:

	� Convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition rights  
 (Notes 5 and 15) 30,228 30,378 273,038

	 Long-term borrowings (Notes 5 and 14) — 350 —

	 Deferred tax liabilities (Note 20) 30,668 29,213 277,012

	 Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 12) 983 999 8,879

	 Provision for loss on guarantees 92 168 831

	 Net defined benefit liability (Note 16) 16,447 19,220 148,559

	 Other 9,748 10,927 88,050

			   Total non-current liabilities 88,166 91,255 796,369

Contingent liabilities (Note 18)

Net assets (Note 19):

	 Shareholders’ equity:

		  Share capital:

			   Authorized—900,000,000 shares in 2021 and 2020
			   Issued—244,524,496 shares in 2021 and 2020 22,398 22,398 202,313

		  Capital surplus 134,362 134,362 1,213,639

		  Retained earnings 365,291 350,562 3,299,530

	 	 Treasury shares—34,561,592 shares in 2021 and 34,560,549 shares in 2020 (58,611) (58,609) (529,410)

			   Total shareholders’ equity 463,440 448,713 4,186,072

	 Accumulated other comprehensive income:

		  Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (Note 7) 71,906 66,261 649,499

		  Deferred gains or losses on hedges 2 4 18

		  Revaluation reserve for land (Note 12) (13,648) (14,028) (123,277)

		  Foreign currency translation adjustment 350 245 3,161

		  Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 16) 965 (876) 8,716

			   Total accumulated other comprehensive income 59,575 51,606 538,117

	 Non-controlling interests 115,919 107,105 1,047,051

		  Total net assets 638,934 607,424 5,771,240

	 Total liabilities and net assets ¥1,679,935 ¥1,644,279 $15,174,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021

Net sales ¥3,211,125 ¥3,253,079 $29,004,833

Cost of sales 2,996,866 3,016,340 27,069,515

Gross profit 214,259 236,739 1,935,318

Selling, general and administrative expenses 175,683 183,629 1,586,876

Operating profit 38,576 53,110 348,442

Other income (expenses):

	 Research fee income 7,750 7,856 70,003

	 Real estate rent, net 402 342 3,631

	 Interest and dividend income 2,846 2,789 25,707

	 Interest expenses (50) (137) (452)

	 Loss on valuation of investment securities (1,633) (951) (14,750)

	 Gain on sales of investment securities, net 10,451 663 94,400

	 Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method 2,440 3,025 22,040

	 Gain (loss) on sales and retirement of non-current assets, net 572 8,913 5,167

	 Impairment loss (Note 9) (1,580) (886) (14,272)

	 Office relocation expenses (32) (257) (289)

	 Loss on disaster (137) — (1,237)

	 Provision for loss on disaster (363) — (3,279) 

	 Extra retirement payments (10,776) — (97,335)

	 Commission for purchase of treasury shares — (110) —

	 Other, net 771 1,179 6,963

		  Total other income (expenses) 10,661 22,426 96,297

			   Profit before income taxes 49,237 75,536 444,739

Income taxes (Note 20):

	 Current 15,432 23,170 139,392

	 Deferred 189 1,137 1,707

		  Total income taxes 15,621 24,307 141,099

Profit 33,616 51,229 303,640

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 9,689 13,261 87,517

Profit attributable to owners of parent ¥     23,927 ¥     37,968 $     216,123

Yen
U.S. dollars  

(Note 1)

Amounts per share of common stock:

	 Basic earnings ¥113.96 ¥175.80 $1.029

	 Diluted net income 106.80 165.33 0.965

	 Cash dividends applicable to the period 42.00 41.00 0.379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Income
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021

Profit ¥33,616 ¥51,229 $303,640

Other comprehensive income (Note 21):

	 Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 6,618 3,011 59,778

	 Deferred gains or losses on hedges (3) 3 (27) 

	 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans, net of tax 2,004 (382) 18,101

	� Share of other comprehensive income of entities accounted for using  
 equity method 345 (308) 3,116

		  Total other comprehensive income 8,964 2,324 80,968

Comprehensive income ¥42,580 ¥53,553 $384,608

Comprehensive income attributable to:

	 Owners of the parent ¥31,516 ¥40,229 $284,671

	 Non-controlling interests 11,064 13,324 99,937

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen
Shareholders’ equity

Year ended March 31, 2020
Share
capital

Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total share-
holders’ equity

Balance at beginning of period ¥22,398 ¥134,362 ¥321,243 ¥(30,469) ¥447,534
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (8,649) (8,649)
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 37,968 37,968
	 Purchase of treasury shares (28,140) (28,140)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to transactions with  

 non-controlling interests (0) (0)
	 Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes in items during period — (0) 29,319 (28,140) 1,179
Balance at end of period ¥22,398 ¥134,362 ¥350,562 ¥(58,609) ¥448,713

Millions of yen
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Year ended March 31, 2020

Valuation 
difference on 
available-for 

sale securities

Deferred 
gains or  

losses on 
hedges

Revaluation 
reserve for 

land

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
adjustment

Remeasure-
ments of 
defined 

benefit plans

Total accumu-
lated other 

comprehen-
sive income

Non- 
controlling 
interests

Total 
net assets

Balance at beginning of period ¥63,409 ¥2 ¥(14,028) ¥ 418 ¥(455) ¥49,346 ¥  95,968 ¥592,848
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (8,649)
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 37,968
	 Purchase of treasury shares (28,140)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to  

 transactions with non-controlling interests (0)

	� Net changes of items other than  
 shareholders’ equity 2,852 2 — (173) (421) 2,260 11,137 13,397

Total changes in items during period 2,852 2 — (173) (421) 2,260 11,137 14,576
Balance at end of period ¥66,261 ¥4 ¥(14,028) ¥ 245 ¥(876) ¥51,606 ¥107,105 ¥607,424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Millions of yen
Shareholders’ equity

Year ended March 31, 2021
Share
capital

Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total share
holders’ equity

Balance at beginning of current period ¥22,398 ¥134,362 ¥350,562 ¥(58,609) ¥448,713
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (8,818) (8,818)
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 23,927 23,927
	 Purchase of treasury shares (2) (2)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to transactions with  

 non-controlling interests (0) (0)
	 Reversal of revaluation reserve for land (380) (380)
	 Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes in items during period — (0) 14,729 (2) 14,727
Balance at end of current period ¥22,398 ¥134,362 ¥365,291 ¥(58,611) ¥463,440
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Millions of yen
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Year ended March 31, 2021

Valuation 
difference on 
available-for-
sale securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Revaluation 
reserve for 

land

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
adjustment

Remeasure-
ments of  
defined 

benefit plans

Total accumu-
lated other 

comprehensive 
income

Non- 
controlling 
interests

Total  
net assets

Balance at beginning of current period ¥66,261 ¥ 4 ¥(14,028) ¥245 ¥   (876) ¥51,606 ¥107,105 ¥607,424
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (8,818) 
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 23,927
	 Purchase of treasury shares (2)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to 

 transactions with non-controlling interests (0)
	� Reversal of revaluation reserve  

 for land (380) 
	� Net changes of items other than  

 shareholders’ equity 5,645 (2) 380 105 1,841 7,969 8,814 16,783
Total changes in items during period 5,645 (2) 380 105 1,841 7,969 8,814 31,510
Balance at end of current period ¥71,906 ¥ 2 ¥(13,648) ¥350 ¥   965 ¥59,575 ¥115,919 ¥638,934

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Shareholders’ equity

Year ended March 31, 2021
Share
capital

Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
shares

Total share
holders’ equity

Balance at beginning of current period $202,313 $1,213,639 $3,166,489 $(529,392) $4,053,049
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (79,650) (79,650)
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 216,123 216,123
	 Purchase of treasury shares (18) (18)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to transactions with  

 non-controlling interests (0) (0)
	 Reversal of revaluation reserve for land (3,432) (3,432)
	 Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity
Total changes in items during period — (0) 133,041 (18) 133,023
Balance at end of current period $202,313 $1,213,639 $3,299,530 $(529,410) $4,186,072

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Year ended March 31, 2021

Valuation 
difference on 
available-for-
sale securities

Deferred 
gains or 

losses on 
hedges

Revaluation 
reserve for 

land

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
adjustment

Remeasure-
ments of  
defined 

benefit plans

Total accumu-
lated other 

comprehensive 
income

Non- 
controlling 
interests

Total  
net assets

Balance at beginning of current period $598,510 $ 36 $(126,709) $2,213 $ (7,913) $466,137 $  967,437 $5,486,623
Changes in items during period
	 Dividends of surplus (79,650)
	 Profit attributable to owners of parent 216,123
	 Purchase of treasury shares (18)
	� Change in ownership interest of parent due to  

 transactions with non-controlling interests (0)
	� Reversal of revaluation reserve  

 for land (3,432)
	� Net changes of items other than  

 shareholders’ equity 50,989 (18) 3,432 949 16,629 71,981 79,613 151,594
Total changes in items during period 50,989 (18) 3,432 949 16,629 71,981 79,613 284,617
Balance at end of current period $649,499 $ 18 $(123,277) $3,162 $  8,716 $538,118 $1,047,050 $5,771,240

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before income taxes ¥  49,237 ¥  75,536 $   444,739
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income taxes to net cash provided by (used in)  
 operating activities:
	 Depreciation 14,468 14,233 130,684
	 Impairment loss 1,580 886 14,272
	 Amortization of goodwill 324 456 2,927
	 Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on guarantees (76) (2) (686)
	 Increase (decrease) in provision for bonuses (1,470) 56 (13,278)
	 Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts (199) (400) (1,797)
	 Increase (decrease) in provision for sales returns (47) (43) (425)
	 Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on disaster 363 — 3,279
	 Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability (2,773) (535) (25,047)
	 Interest and dividend income (2,846) (2,789) (25,707)
	 Interest expenses 50 137 452
	 Share of loss (profit) of entities accounted for using equity method (2,440) (3,025) (22,040)
	 Loss (gain) on sales and retirement of non-current assets (572) (8,913) (5,167)
	 Loss (gain) on sales of short-term and long-term investment securities (10,451) (663) (94,400)
	 Loss (gain) on valuation of short-term and long-term investment securities 1,633 951 14,750
	 Loss on disaster 137 — 1,237
	 Extra retirement payments 10,776 — 97,335
	 Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable–trade (12,683) (2,703) (114,561)
	 Decrease (increase) in inventories (4,285) (5,252) (38,705)
	 Decrease (increase) in net defined benefit asset (3,123) 902 (28,209)
	 Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable–trade 16,391 13,976 148,053
	 Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes (341) 179 (3,080)
	 Other, net 1,477 (260) 13,342
		  Subtotal 55,130 82,727 497,968
	 Interest and dividends received 5,107 4,248 46,129
	 Interest expenses paid (50) (138) (452)
	 Extra retirement payments (10,593) — (95,682)
	 Income taxes paid (15,145) (29,920) (136,799)
		  Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 34,449 56,917 311,164
Cash flows from investing activities:
	 Payments into time deposits (1,470) (1,476) (13,278)
	 Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits 1,476 1,476 13,332
	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,842) (24,300) (115,997)
	 Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 1,232 14,031 11,128
	 Purchase of intangible assets (2,826) (3,053) (25,526)
	 Purchase of investment securities (2,133) (977) (19,267)
	 Proceeds from sales and redemption of investment securities 14,661 2,075 132,427
	 Purchase of shares of subsidiaries and associates (2,123) (1,809) (19,176)
	 Payments of loans receivable (1) (108) (9)
	 Collection of loans receivable 9 12 81
	 Net decrease (increase) in loans receivable from subsidiaries and associates — (34) —
	 Other, net 1,078 844 9,738
		  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,939) (13,319) (26,547)
Cash flows from financing activities:
	 Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings — (2,500) —
	 Repayments of lease obligations (1,375) (1,532) (12,420)
	 Repayments of long-term borrowings (3,558) (5,950) (32,138)
	 Purchase of treasury shares (2) (28,250) (18)
	 Cash dividends paid (8,818) (8,649) (79,650)
	 Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (2,250) (2,187) (20,323)
		  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (16,003) (49,068) (144,549)
	 Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents 0 (0) 0
	 Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,507 (5,470) 140,068
	 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 224,541 230,011 2,028,191
	 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 5) ¥240,048 ¥224,541 $2,168,259

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION (the “Company”) and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries (the “Companies”) maintain their accounts and records in accordance 
with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Companies Act and the Financial 
Instruments and Exchange Act and their related accounting regulations and in 
conformity with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan 
(“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects from the accounting 
and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
	 The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restructured 
and translated into English from the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP and filed with the appro-
priate Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance as required by the Finan-
cial Instruments and Exchange Act. Certain supplementary information included 
in the statutory Japanese language consolidated financial statements, but not 
required for fair presentation, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.
	 The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars is included 
solely for the convenience of the readers, using the prevailing exchange rate at 
March 31, 2021, which was ¥110.71 to U.S. $1.00. The convenience translation 
should not be construed as a representation that the Japanese yen amounts have 
been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at 
this or any other rate of exchange.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its 
significant subsidiaries (14 subsidiaries in the year ended March 31, 2021).
	 All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. 
In the elimination of investments in subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiaries are recorded using the fair value at the time the Company acquired 
control of the respective subsidiaries.

B. EQUITY METHOD
Investments in associates (all those 20% to 50% owned and certain others 15% 
to 20% owned) are accounted for by the equity method.
	 Unconsolidated subsidiaries and the other associates are stated at cost since 
their net income and retained earnings in the aggregate are not material com-
pared to consolidated net income and retained earnings, respectively.

C. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill, which is the difference between the cost of investments and equity in 
their net assets at the date of acquisition, arising from consolidated subsidiaries 
is amortized over the estimated useful lives up to 20 years using the straight- 
line method, or is charged to income in the year incurred if it is immaterial.
	 Software for its own use is amortized over the estimated useful life (5 years) 
using the straight-line method.

D. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand, readily 
available deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with maturities not 
exceeding three months at the time of purchase are considered to be cash and 
cash equivalents.

E. SECURITIES
Available-for-sale securities with available fair market values are stated at fair 
market value and unrealized gains and losses on these securities are reported, 
net of applicable income taxes, as a separate component of net assets. Realized 
gains and losses on sales of such securities are computed using moving-average 
cost.
	 Available-for-sale securities with no available fair market values are stated at 
moving-average cost.

F. DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING
Derivatives for which the hedge accounting is not applied are stated at fair value.
	 The Companies use the following derivatives to hedge the risk of exchange 
rate fluctuations and to fix cash flows.
	 Hedging instruments:	 forward foreign exchange contracts
	 Hedged items:	� payables denominated in foreign currencies and 

forecasted transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies

	 As a policy, the Companies do not enter derivatives for speculative
transactions.
	 The Companies apply deferral hedge accounting except for forward foreign 
exchange contracts which meet the special criteria for allocation method. The 
Companies evaluate hedge effectiveness of forward foreign exchange contracts 
by comparing the total changes in values of hedging instruments and hedged 
items for the periods from the commencement of hedge contracts to the evalua-
tion dates. If major terms and conditions of a hedging instrument are consistent 
to those of an asset or liability as a hedged item, the Companies consider it is 
obvious that the hedge is 100% effective and omit the evaluation test.

G. INVENTORIES
Inventories, as shown as “Merchandise and finished goods” on the balance 
sheets, are stated at cost, primarily determined by the moving-average method, 
with book value written down as necessary to reflect any decrease in profitability.
	 Loss on valuation of inventories is recorded as cost of sales.

H. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, excluding leased assets, are stated at cost. Depre-
ciation is computed by the straight-line method at rates based on their estimated 
useful lives.
	 The estimated useful lives were as follows:
	 Buildings and structures: 2-50 years
	 Machinery, equipment and vehicles: 2-12 years
	 Leased assets related to finance lease transactions that do not transfer owner-
ship are depreciated using the straight-line method with the lease periods as the 
useful lives. The residual value is to be zero, unless the amount of residual value 
is agreed upon in the lease contract.

I. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided in amounts sufficient to cover prob-
able losses on collection. It consists of the estimated uncollectible amount with 
respect to certain identified items and the amount calculated using the actual 
percentage of collection losses in the past with respect to other items.
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J. PROVISION FOR BONUSES
Provision for employees’ bonuses is provided in the amount expected to be paid 
in respect of the calculation period ended on the balance sheet date.

K. PROVISION FOR SALES RETURNS
Provision for sales returns is provided in the amount estimated by multiplying 
the balance of notes and accounts receivable–trade as of the end of the fiscal 
period by the actual sales return ratio and gross margin ratio.

L. PROVISION FOR LOSS ON DISASTER
Provision for loss on disaster is provided in the amount estimated as of the end 
of the fiscal period to cover expenses required to restore assets damaged by 
disaster.

M. PROVISION FOR LOSS ON GUARANTEES
Provision for loss on guarantees is provided in the amount sufficient to cover 
probable losses on debt guarantees in consideration of the financial condition of 
the relevant associates.

N. �ACCOUNTING METHOD FOR EMPLOYEES’ SEVERANCE AND 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

1) �The method of attributing expected retirement benefits to the fiscal 
period

In calculating the projected benefit obligations, the method of attributing expect-
ed retirement benefits to the fiscal period is based on the benefit formula basis.

2) The method of amortization of actuarial difference and prior service costs
Prior service costs are primarily amortized by the straight-line method over 3 to 
5 years, which is not longer than the average remaining service period of the 
employees when the costs are incurred.
	 Actuarial difference is primarily amortized by the straight-line method over 3 
to 10 years, which is not longer than the average remaining service period of the 
employees when the costs are incurred.

O. INCOME TAXES
The Companies provide for income taxes applicable to all items included in the 
consolidated statements of income regardless of when such taxes are payable. 
Income taxes based on temporary differences between tax and financial report-
ing purposes are reflected as deferred income taxes in the consolidated financial 
statements using the asset and liability method.

P. AMOUNTS PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK
The computation of earnings per share of common stock is based on the average 
number of shares outstanding during each fiscal period.
	 Cash dividends per share represent the actual amounts declared during the 
respective years.

Q. RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform to the 
current year presentation. These reclassifications and restatements had no effect 
on previously reported results of operations or retained earnings.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Items for which the amount has been recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on accounting estimates that 
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements for the year 
ending March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets: ¥19,403 million ($175,260 thousand)
Deferred tax liabilities: (¥47,620 million ($430,133 thousand)) 
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities): (¥28,217 million ($254,873 thousand)) 

For deferred tax assets, the Companies consider recoverability to estimate the 
amount to be recorded. In determining recoverability, the Companies consider 
the probability of realizing estimated future taxable income based on business 
plans and the probability that deferred tax assets will be utilized to effectively 
reduce future taxable income.
	 Estimated future taxable income based on business plans may be affected 
by variance in uncertain economic conditions in the future. Variance between the 
estimated and actual amount of taxable income may have a significant impact on 
the amount of deferred tax assets in the consolidated financial statements for the 
following fiscal year.

4. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED
• �“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition“ (ASBJ Statement No. 29 

(revised 2020), March 31, 2020)
• �“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” 
(ASBJ Guidance No. 30 (revised 2021), March 26, 2021)

• �“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments” (ASBJ Guidance No. 19 (revised 2020), March 31, 2020)

(1) Outline of changes
IASB and FASB co-developed a new comprehensive revenue recognition standard 
and published “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” in May 2014 (IFRS No. 15 
in IASB, Topic 606 in FASB). Considering IFRS No. 15 will be applied from the fiscal 
year starting January 1, 2018 and Topic 606 from the fiscal year starting December 
15, 2017, the ASBJ developed comprehensive Accounting Standard for Revenue 
Recognition and published it together with implementation guidance.
	 The fundamental policy for developing Accounting Standard for Revenue 
Recognition by the ASBJ was that the accounting standards would incorporate 
the fundamental policy of IFRS No. 15 as the starting point from the perspective 
of comparability of financial statements, which is one of the benefits of achieving 
consistency with IFRS No. 15. If there are matters to be taken into consideration 
in Japan in actual practice, etc., alternative handling will be added within a range 
that would not impair financial statement comparability.

(2) Date of adoption
The Companies adopt the accounting standards effective from the beginning of 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022.
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(3) The effect of adopting the accounting standard
The Companies are currently assessing the effects of adopting the Accounting 
Standard for Revenue Recognition on the consolidated financial statements.

• �“Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” (Accounting Standards 
Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No. 30, July 4, 2019)

• �“Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories” (ASBJ Statement No. 9 
(revised 2019), July 4, 2019)

• �“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10 
(revised 2019), July 4, 2019)

• �“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measure-
ment” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, July 4, 2019)

• �“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instru-
ments” (ASBJ Guidance No. 19 (revised 2020), March 31, 2020)

(1) Outline of changes
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Financial Account-
ing Standards Board (FASB) of the United States have issued congruent and 
detailed guidance regarding fair value measurement (IFRS 13 “Fair Value Mea-
surement” by IFRS and Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820 “Fair Value 
Measurement” by FASB as a U.S. accounting standard). The Accounting Standards 
Board of Japan (ASBJ) considered IFRS and FASB guidance, mainly with regard to 
fair value of financial instruments and disclosure, in order to improve the compa-
rability with such international accounting standards, and issued the Accounting 
Standard for Fair Value Measurement, the Implementation Guidance on Account-
ing Standard for Fair Value Measurement and other standards.
	 The fundamental policy for developing Accounting Standard for Fair Value 
Measurement by the ASBJ was that the accounting standard would incorporate 
the fundamental policy of IFRS 13 in its entirety from the perspective of improv-
ing the comparability of financial statements by using a uniform method for 
calculating fair value. In addition, ASBJ took actual practices, etc. in Japan into 
consideration by allowing for other treatment for specific items within a range 
that will not materially impair financial statement comparability.

(2) Date of adoption
The Companies adopt the accounting standards effective from the beginning of 
the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022.

(3) The effect of adopting the accounting standards
The companies have not yet determined the effect that adopting Accounting Stan-
dard for Fair Value Measurement and the other standards will have on the consoli-
dated financial statements.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(1) Policy for financial instruments
As a matter of policy, the Companies limit fund management to the use of 
instruments including short-term deposits and raise money by borrowing from 
financial institutions. The Companies use derivatives to reduce the risk noted in 
(2), not for speculative transactions.

(2) Types of financial instruments and related risk
Notes and accounts receivable and other monetary claims on customers and 
counterparties expose the Companies to customer credit risk.
	 Securities and investment securities consist primarily of certificates of deposit 

and shares of companies with which the Companies do business. Certificates of 
deposit expose the Companies to the credit risk of issuers. Investment securities 
expose the Companies to the risk of changes in market prices.
	 Long-term loans receivable expose the Companies to the credit risk of the 
borrowers.
	 Notes and accounts payable–trade are almost entirely due within one year.
	 Long-term borrowings are to fund capital expenditures.
	 Convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition rights are to mainly fund 
share purchases.
	 The Companies use derivatives including forward foreign exchange contracts 
to hedge the risk of exchange rate fluctuations associated with trade payables 
denominated in foreign currencies.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments
1) Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of default by customers or counterparties. The Companies 
have procedures for managing receivable balances and due dates by counter-
party and for regularly monitoring the financial condition of significant counter-
parties. The Companies mitigate the risks associated with certificates of deposits 
in accordance with internal policies and procedures for investments and fund 
management. The Companies also mitigate the risk of long-term loans receivable 
in accordance with internal policies and procedures for loans receivable.

2) Market risk management
As for investment securities, market prices of listed equity securities are moni-
tored on a quarterly basis.

3) Liquidity risk associated with funding
Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to make scheduled payments. The Com-
panies manage liquidity risk by creating and updating a cash management plan 
based on reports from each of the Companies.
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(4) Supplemental information on the fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments is based on market prices, or a reasonable 
estimate of fair value when market prices are not available. Estimates of fair value 
are subject to fluctuation because they employ variable factors and assumptions.
	 The following table summarizes the book value and the estimated fair values 
of financial instruments outstanding at March 31, 2021 and 2020. Financial 
instruments for which fair value is not readily determinable are not included in 
the following table. Note 2 provides information on financial instruments that 
are not included as their fair value is not readily determinable.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2021 Book value Fair value Difference
Cash and deposits ¥   222,748 ¥   222,748 ¥          —
Notes and accounts receivable-trade 702,188 702,188 —
Accounts receivable-other 64,589 64,589 —
Securities and investment securities:
	 Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates 30,432 117,952 87,520
	 Available-for-sale securities 163,960 163,960 —
Long-term loans receivable 
 (including portion due within one year) 114 114 —
		  Total assets ¥1,184,031 ¥1,271,551 ¥87,520
Notes and accounts payable-trade ¥   900,015 ¥   900,015 ¥          —
Current portion of long-term borrowings 350 349 (1)
Convertible bond-type bonds with share  
 acquisition rights 30,228 31,755 1,527
		  Total liabilities ¥   930,593 ¥   932,119 ¥  1,526
Derivatives* ¥              7 ¥              7 ¥          —

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
March 31, 2021 Book value Fair value Difference
Cash and deposits $  2,011,995 $  2,011,995 $            —
Notes and accounts receivable-trade 6,342,589 6,342,589 —
Accounts receivable-other 583,407 583,407 —
Securities and investment securities:
	 Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates 274,881 1,065,414 790,533
	 Available-for-sale securities 1,480,986 1,480,986 —
Long-term loans receivable 
 (including portion due within one year) 1,030 1,030 —
		  Total assets $10,694,888 $11,485,421 $790,533
Notes and accounts payable-trade $  8,129,482 $  8,129,482 $            —
Current portion of long-term borrowings 3,161 3,152 (9)
Convertible bond-type bonds with share  
 acquisition rights 273,038 286,831 13,793
		  Total liabilities $  8,405,681 $  8,419,465 $  13,784
Derivatives* $              63 $              63 $            —

Millions of yen
March 31, 2020 Book value Fair value Difference
Cash and deposits ¥   207,545 ¥   207,545 ¥         —
Notes and accounts receivable-trade 689,144 689,144 —
Accounts receivable-other 65,112 65,112 —
Securities and investment securities:
	 Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates 29,729 80,114 50,385
	 Available-for-sale securities 156,445 156,445 —
Long-term loans receivable 
 (including portion due within one year) 122 122 0
		  Total assets ¥1,148,097 ¥1,198,482 ¥50,385
Notes and accounts payable-trade ¥   883,624 ¥   883,624 ¥         —
Current portion of long-term borrowings 3,558 3,557 (1)
Convertible bond-type bonds with share  
acquisition rights 30,378 31,425 1,047
Long-term borrowings 350 349 (1)
		  Total liabilities ¥   917,910 ¥   918,955 ¥  1,045
Derivatives* ¥            12 ¥            12 ¥         —
* �The value of assets and liabilities arising from derivatives is shown at net value. Amounts in 

parentheses represent net liability.

Note 1: �Methods to determine the estimated fair value of financial instruments and other informa-
tion for securities and derivatives

	 Assets
	 a. �Cash and deposits, notes and accounts receivable–trade, and accounts receivable–other: 

Book value approximates fair value because of their short settlement period.
	 b. �Securities and investment securities:  

As for certificates of deposits, book value approximates fair value because of their short 
settlement period. The fair value of equity securities is based on quoted market prices.

	 c. �Long-term loans receivable (including current portion): 
The fair value of long-term loans receivable is calculated as discounted present value of 
total principal and interest using assumed interest rates for equivalent new loans.

	 Liabilities
	 a. �Notes and accounts payable–trade: 

Book value approximates fair value because of their short settlement period.
	 b. �Current portion of long-term borrowings and long-term borrowings: 

The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated as discounted present value of total 
principal and interest using assumed interest rates for equivalent new loans.

	 c. �Convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition rights: 
Market value of convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition rights depends on 
the price presented by the correspondent financial institutions.

	 Derivatives
	 �Please refer to Note 8. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS of the notes to the consolidated financial 

statements.
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Note 2: �Financial instruments for which fair value is not readily determinable at March 31, 2021 
and 2020 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2020 2021
Unlisted equity securities ¥29,098 ¥28,223 $262,830

Note 3: �The annual maturities of financial assets and investment securities with contractual matur-
ities subsequent to March 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Millions of yen

March 31, 2021
Within 

one year

After one year 
through 
five years

After five years 
through  
ten years

After 
ten years

Cash and deposits ¥  222,748 ¥ — ¥ — ¥     —
Notes and accounts  
 receivable-trade 702,188 — — —
Accounts receivable-other 64,589 — — —
Securities and investment  
 securities
	� Available-for-sale securities 

 with contractual maturities:
		  Equity securities — — — —
		  Debt securities — — — —
		  Other securities 18,770 — — —
Long-term loans receivable  
 (including current portion)	 1 3 — 110
		  Total ¥1,008,296 ¥3 ¥— ¥110

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

March 31, 2021
Within  

one year

After one year 
through  
five years

After five years 
through  
ten years

After  
ten years 

Cash and deposits $2,011,995 $   — $ — $     —
Notes and accounts  
receivable—trade 6,342,589 — — —
Accounts receivable—other 583,407 — — —
Securities and investment  
 securities
	� Available-for-sale securities 

 with contractual maturities:
		  Equity securities — — — —
		  Debt securities — — — —
		  Other securities 169,542 — — —
Long-term loans receivable  
 (including current portion) 9 27 — 994

		  Total $9,107,542 $27 $— $994

Millions of yen

March 31, 2020
Within  

one year

After one year 
through  
five years

After five years 
through  
ten years

After  
ten years

Cash and deposits ¥207,545 ¥  — ¥  — ¥     —
Notes and accounts 
 receivable—trade 689,144 — — —
Accounts receivable—other 65,112 — — —
Securities and investment  
 securities
		  Equity securities — — — —
		  Debt securities — — — —
		  Other securities 18,770 — — —
Long-term loans receivable 
 (including current portion) 6 6 0 110
		  Total ¥980,577 ¥6 ¥0 ¥110

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2020 2021
Cash and deposits ¥222,748 ¥207,545 $2,011,995
Securities–certificate of deposits 18,770 18,770 169,542 
Time deposits with maturities 
 over three months (1,470) (1,476) (13,278)
Other — (298) —
Cash and cash equivalents ¥240,048 ¥224,541 $2,168,259

7. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
(1) Held-to-maturity debt securities
The book value and fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities as of March 31, 
2021 and 2020 are not applicable.

(2) Available-for-sale securities with a fair value
The following tables summarize the acquisition cost and book value of available-
for-sale securities with a fair value as of March 31, 2021 and 2020.
	 Non-listed equity securities, in the amount of ¥6,154 million ($55,587 
thousand) and ¥7,811 million as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are 
not included in the tables below since no readily determinable market price is 
available and it is extremely difficult to determine their fair value.

Millions of yen
March 31, 2021 Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds 
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities ¥141,431 ¥29,768 ¥111,663
	 Debt securities:
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities — — —

¥141,431 ¥29,768 ¥111,663
Securities whose book value does not exceed 
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities ¥    3,759 ¥  3,976 ¥      (217)
	 Debt securities: —
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities 18,770 18,770 —

¥  22,529 ¥22,746 ¥      (217)
Total ¥163,960 ¥52,514 ¥111,446
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Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
March 31, 2021 Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds  
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities $1,277,491 $268,882 $1,008,609
	 Debt securities:
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities — — —

$1,277,491 $268,882 $1,008,609 
Securities whose book value does not exceed  
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities $     33,953 $  35,914 $      (1,961)
	 Debt securities:
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities 169,542 169,542 —

$   203,495 $205,456 $      (1,961)
Total $1,480,986 $474,338 $1,006,648

Millions of yen
March 31, 2020 Book value Acquisition cost Difference
Securities whose book value exceeds  
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities ¥135,758 ¥33,307 ¥102,451
	 Debt securities:
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities — — —

¥135,758 ¥33,307 ¥102,451
Securities whose book value does not exceed  
 their acquisition cost:
	 Equity securities ¥    1,917 ¥  2,263 ¥      (346)
	 Debt securities:
		  Government bonds, municipal bonds — — —
		  Corporate bonds — — —
		  Other securities — — —
	 Other securities 18,770 18,770 —

¥  20,687 ¥21,033 ¥      (346)
Total ¥156,445 ¥54,340 ¥102,105

(3) Available-for-sale securities sold during the year
Total sales of available-for-sale securities sold and the related gains and losses for 
the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows.

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
Years ended March 31 2021 2020 2021
Proceeds from sales ¥14,660 ¥1,449 $132,418
Realized gains on sales 10,529 669 95,104
Realized losses on sales 78 6 704

	 For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Companies recognized 
¥1,633 million ($14,750 thousand) and ¥951 million in loss on valuation of 
investment securities, respectively, of which ¥1,633 million ($14,750 thousand) 
and ¥951 million applied to available-for-sale securities, respectively. The Com-
panies recognize impairment of applicable equities as an unrealized loss on 
devaluation if the market value at the end of the fiscal period is 30% or more 
below the acquisition cost. The Companies recognize impairment of equities for 
which fair value is not readily determinable net of amount deemed recoverable if 

the net assets per share of the issuer fall 50% or more below the acquisition cost.

8. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no derivative transac-
tion for which the hedge accounting was not applied.
	 Currency-related transactions for which the hedge accounting was applied for 
the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:
Year ended March 31, 2021

Millions of yen
Accounting method Type Hedged item Notional amount Fair value

Allocation method for foreign  
 exchange forwards Buy: US$ Accounts payable ¥156 ¥7
Total ¥156 ¥7

Year ended March 31, 2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars

(Note 1)
Accounting method Type Hedged item Notional amount Fair value

Allocation method for foreign  
 exchange forwards Buy: US$ Accounts payable $1,409 $63
Total $1,409 $63

Year ended March 31, 2020
Millions of yen

Accounting method Type Hedged item Notional amount Fair value
Allocation method for foreign  
 exchange forwards Buy: US$ Accounts payable ¥1,766 ¥12
Total ¥1,766 ¥12

Note: Calculation of fair value is based on the prices provided by financial institutions.

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSS
Accumulated impairment losses are directly written off against the value of each 
asset based on the relevant rules for consolidated financial statements.
	 For business-use assets owned by the Companies that are idle, are not expect-
ed to be used in the future and have recoverable values less than book value, the 
Companies write down the book value to the recoverable value, and accounts for 
the amount of this write-down as an impairment loss in other income (expenses).
	 The Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business Segment has established 
region-based operating classification and groups its assets by region. Assets of the 
Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business Segment 
and the Animal Health Products and Food Processing Raw Materials Wholesale 
Business Segment are also grouped by region.
	 During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Companies recorded impairment 
loss of non-current assets for the following asset groups: 

Application Type Location Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
Idle assets Land and Kanto 3 items ¥   160 $  1,445

Buildings, etc. Others 11 100
171 1,545

Business assets Buildings, etc. Hokkaido 5 items 1,366 12,339
Others 14 126

1,380 12,465
Rental assets Buildings, etc. Chugoku 1 item 23 208

Others 6 54
29 262

Total ¥1,580 $14,272
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	 For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Companies measured the recover-
able value of assets using the net sale value. The net sale value is the amount 
calculated based on the appraised value determined by a real estate appraiser 
or the value assessed for property tax purposes. The Companies consider the net 
sale value of an asset, which is deemed to be very difficult to sale or reuse, to be 
zero.
	 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Companies recorded loss on 
impairment of fixed assets for the following asset groups:

Application Type Location Millions of yen

Idle assets
Land and  
Buildings, etc. Kyusyu 2 items ¥293

Others 52
345

Business assets Buildings, etc. Hokkaido 7 items 462
Others 21

483
Rental assets Land Kinki 2 items 58
Total ¥886

	 For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Companies measured the recover-
able value of assets using the net sale value. The net sale value is the amount 
calculated based on the appraised value determined by a real estate appraiser 
or the value assessed for property tax purposes. The Companies consider the net 
sale value of an asset, which is deemed to be very difficult to sale or reuse, to be 
zero.
	 For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, impairment loss of noncur-
rent assets totaled ¥1,580 million ($14,272 thousand) and ¥886 million, respec-
tively, as presented below.

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
Item 2021 2020 2021
Buildings and structures ¥1,131 ¥  343 $10,216 
Land 92 67 831
Other 357 476 3,225
Total ¥1,580 ¥886 $14,272 

10. LOSS ON REDUCTION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS
When a company acquires property, plant and equipment with funds from a 
national or local government subsidy, the transaction is qualified for deferred 
gain and reduced basis transactions (“Asshuku Kicho”). The accumulated amount 
of cost reduction as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Buildings and structures ¥   727 ¥   704 $  6,567
Machinery and vehicles 359 359 3,243
Land 828 792 7,479
Other 1 0 8
Total ¥1,915 ¥1,855 $17,297

11. INVESTMENT AND RENTAL PROPERTY
The Companies own rental office buildings (including land) and idle land in 
Tokyo and elsewhere. For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, net rent 
income totaled ¥241 million ($2,177 thousand) and ¥342 million, respectively. 
Rent income is included in other income and rent expense is included in other 
expenses. For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Companies record-
ed impairment loss of investment and rental property of ¥200 million ($1,807 
thousand) and ¥403 million, respectively.
	 The book value, net change and fair value of investment and rental property 
as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Book value Fair value at  

March 31,  
2021

 
March 31, 2021

March 31, 
2020

 
Net change

March 31, 
2021

Investment and rental property ¥10,714 ¥(662) ¥10,052 ¥19,853 

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Book value Fair value at  

March 31,  
2021

 
March 31, 2021

March 31,  
2020

 
Net change

March 31, 
2021

Investment and rental property $96,775 $(5,979) $90,796 $179,324

Millions of yen
Book value Fair value at  

March 31,  
2020

 
March 31, 2020

March 31,  
2019

 
Net change

March 31,  
2020

Investment and rental property ¥6,223 ¥4,491 ¥10,714 ¥19,443

Notes: 1. �Book value represents the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment loss.

	 2. �Net change for the year ended March 31, 2021 mainly consisted of an increase due to 
renovation in the amount of ¥727 million ($6,567 thousand) and decreases due to trans-
fer to leased assets in the amount of ¥825 million ($7,452 thousand) and reclassification 
to own-use in the amount of ¥302 million ($2,728 thousand). 
	 Net change for the year ended March 31, 2020 mainly consisted of an increase due 
to transfer to investment and rental properties in the amount of ¥4,203 million and a 
decrease due to sale in the amount of ¥326 million.

	 3. �Fair value of principal properties at March 31, 2021 and 2020 was mainly based on 
external appraisal values or real-estate tax appraisal values.

12. LAND REVALUATION
Under the “Law on Land Revaluation,” passed on March 31, 1998 and revised 
on March 31, 2001, the Company and some consolidated subsidiaries carried 
out a one-time revaluation of their own-use land to a value based on real estate 
appraisal information at March 31, 2002.
	 The resulting land revaluation differences represent unrealized appreciation 
of land and are accounted for as land revaluation differences, net of taxes in net 
assets.
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13. LEASE
Lessee
(1) Finance lease transactions
The Companies hold leased assets as a lessee under finance lease transactions 
that do not transfer ownership. Such leased assets are mainly machinery and 
equipment.
	 The annual maturities of finance lease obligations at March 31, 2021 were as 
follows:

Years ended March 31
Average interest 

rate (%) Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 1.95% ¥1,757 $15,870
2022 1.02 1,308 11,815
2023 1.02 5,826 52,624
2024 1.02 93 840
2025 1.02 27 244

(2) Operating lease transactions
The Companies also enters into operating lease contracts. Future minimum lease 
payments of non-cancellable operating lease contracts are as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2020 2021
Within one year ¥2,295 ¥2,316 $20,730
Over one year 3,444 3,868 31,108
Total ¥5,739 ¥6,184 $51,838

Lessor
(1) Finance lease transactions
1) Components of investments in leases
Amounts for the year ended March 31, 2020 are not material and are omitted.
a. Current assets

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2021
Gross lease receivables ¥577 $5,212
Unearned interest income (40) (361)
Total ¥537 $4,851

b. Investments and other assets

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2021
Gross lease receivables ¥3,988 $36,022
Unearned interest income (730) (6,594)
Total ¥3,258 $29,428

2) �The annual maturities of lease investment assets for finance leases at 
March 31, 2021

a. Current assets

Year ended March 31 Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 ¥577 $5,212
2022 — —
2023 — —
2024 — —
2025 and thereafter — —

b. Investments and other assets

Year ended March 31 Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 ¥        — $          —
2022 216 1,951
2023 216 1,951
2024 216 1,951
2025 and thereafter 3,340 30,169

14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
The Company has overdraft facilities with 17 banks in order to support effective 
financing. The unexecuted balance of overdraft facilities at March 31, 2021 and 
2020 was as below.

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2020 2021
Total overdraft facilities ¥193,000 ¥193,000 $1,743,293 
Less amounts currently executed — — —
Unexecuted balance ¥193,000 ¥193,000 $1,743,293 

	 Short-term borrowings including overdraft facilities at March 31, 2021 and 
2020 principally bore annual average interest rates of 0.32% and 0.39% per 
annum, respectively.
	 Long-term borrowings at March 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
March 31 2021 2020 2021
Borrowings from banks ¥ 350 ¥  3,908 $  3,161

¥ 350 ¥  3,908 $  3,161
Less current portion (350) (3,558) (3,161)
Amount due after one year ¥     — ¥     350 $         —

	 The annual maturities of long-term borrowings at March 31, 2021 were as 
follows:

Years ended March 31
Average interest 

rate (%) Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 0.32% ¥350 $3,161
2022 — — —
2023 — — —
2024 — — —
2025 and thereafter — — —
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15. BONDS PAYABLE
The Company has issued convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition 
rights.
Company MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION
Description Euro-yen convertible bond-type bonds 

with share acquisition rights due 2022
Date of Issuance October 10, 2017
Maturity October 7, 2022

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)
Balance at beginning of period ¥30,378 $274,393 
Balance at end of period 30,228 273,038
Interest rate (%) — —
Collateral None None
Total ¥30,228 $273,038

(1) Details of convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition rights
Type of stock to be issued upon exercise 
of the share acquisition rights

Common stock 

Yen
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
Issue price of the share acquisition rights —
Issue price of the shares*2 ¥2,290 $20,685

Millions of yen

Thousands of  
U.S. dollars  

(Note 1)
Total issue price ¥30,750 $277,753
Upon exercise of the share acquisition rights, 
 total issue price to be issued common stock — —
Ratio (%) 100 100
Exercise period of the share acquisition rights From October 24, 2017

To September 23, 2022
Substitutive deposits *1

*1	� Upon the exercise of the share acquisition rights, the bonds attached with the relevant share 
acquisition rights are contributed.

*2	� The conversion price has been adjusted to ¥2,279.3 effective April 1, 2021 in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of the Euro-yen convertible bond-type bonds with share acquisition 
rights due 2022, with the Board of Directors held on May 13, 2021 approved a plan to pay 
year-end dividend of ¥21 yen per share, which resulted in an annual dividend of ¥42 per share 
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021.

(2) Redemption schedule of bonds for 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2021

Years ended March 31 Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 — —
2022 ¥30,228 $273,038
2023 — —
2024 — —
2025 — —

16. EMPLOYEES’ SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(1) Overview of retirement benefit plan
The Companies use a contract-type corporate pension plan and an unfunded 
lump-sum retirement benefit plan as a defined benefit plan system, and a defined 
contribution pension plan as a defined contribution plan system. In addition, the 
Companies may pay a premium severance payment when employees retire. The 
Companies, except for a few, join in the multiemployer pension fund plans. Of 
which, the plan, for which the amount of plan assets attributable to the Company’s 
contributions cannot be reasonably determined, is accounted for in the same 
manner as for a defined contribution pension plan.

	 Certain consolidated subsidiaries apply the simplified method to calculate 
net defined benefit liability and retirement benefit expenses. Under the sim-
plified method, the amount of benefits payable to be accrued for the voluntary 
retirement of all employees at fiscal period end is used as the amount of project-
ed benefit obligations.

(2) �Defined benefit plans 
(Excluding the plans accounted for using the simplified method)

1) Movement in projected benefit obligations

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Balance at beginning of period ¥43,889 ¥45,121 $396,432
Service cost 2,658 2,749 24,009
Interest cost 40 41 361
Actuarial difference (306) (266) (2,764)
Benefits paid (5,978) (3,756) (53,997)
Balance at end of period ¥40,303 ¥43,889 $364,041

2) Movement in plan assets

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Balance at beginning of period ¥29,220 ¥30,818 $263,933
Expected return on plan assets 492 520 4,444
Actuarial difference 2,883 (1,241) 26,041
Contribution paid by the employer 1,135 1,170 10,252
Benefits paid (2,200) (2,047) (19,872)
Balance at end of period ¥31,530 ¥29,220 $284,798

3) �Reconciliation from projected benefit obligations and plan assets to net 
defined benefit liability and asset

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Funded projected benefit obligations ¥24,066 ¥24,879 $217,379
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 16,237 19,010 146,662
Plan assets (31,530) (29,220) (284,798)
Net amount of liability and asset recognized 
 in the consolidated balance sheet ¥  8,773 ¥14,669 $  79,243
Net defined benefit liability ¥16,228 ¥19,001 $146,581
Net defined benefit asset (7,455) (4,332) (67,338)
Net amount of liability and asset recognized 
 in the consolidated balance sheet ¥  8,773 ¥14,669 $  79,243

4) Retirement benefit expenses

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Service cost ¥2,658 ¥2,749 $24,009
Interest cost 40 41 361
Expected return on plan assets (492) (520) (4,444)
Amortization of actuarial difference (176) 385 (1,590)
Amortization of prior service costs — — —
Other 202 144 1,825
Retirement benefit expenses ¥2,232 ¥2,799 $20,161

Notes:  �For the year ended March 31, 2021, in addition to retirement benefit expenses above, the 
Companies recognized extra retirement payments of ¥10,776 million ($97,335 thousand) 
in other expenses.
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5) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in other comprehensive income
The components of remeasurements of defined benefit plans (before income tax 
effect) in other comprehensive income were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Prior service cost ¥        — ¥      — $          —
Actuarial difference 3,014 (590) 27,224 
Total ¥3,014 ¥(590) $27,224 

6) �Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in accumulated other compre-
hensive income

The components of remeasurements of defined benefit plans (before income tax 
effect) in accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Unrecognized prior service costs ¥        — ¥         — $          —
Unrecognized actuarial difference 1,549 (1,464) 13,992
Total ¥1,549 ¥(1,464) $13,992

7) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Percentage by major category of plan assets was as follows:

2021 2020
Debt securities 46% 44%
Equity securities 27 21
Alternative investments (Note) 10 18
Life insurance general accounts 11 13
Other 6 4
Total 100% 100%

Note: Alternative investments mainly included investments in hedge funds.

b. Calculation of long-term expected rate of return on plan assets
In determining the long-term expected rate of return on plan assets, the current 
and projected allocations and the long-term rate of returns on various categories 
of plan assets have been considered.

8) Actuarial assumptions
The major actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 0.0 to 0.9% 0.0 to 0.9%
Long-term expected rate of return on plan assets 0.2 to 2.0% 0.2 to 2.0%

(3) Defined benefit plans accounted for using the simplified method
1) �Movement in net defined benefit liability for the plans accounted for 

using the simplified method

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Balance at beginning of period ¥219 ¥217 $1,978
	 Retirement benefit expenses 19 21 172
	 Benefits paid (19) (19) (172)
	 Contribution to the plans — — —
	� Increase due to new consolidated  

 subsidiaries — — —
Balance at end of period ¥219 ¥219 $1,978

2) �Reconciliation from projected benefit obligations and plan assets to net 
defined benefit liability and asset

Millions of yen

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

(Note 1)
2021 2020 2021

Funded projected benefit obligations ¥     — ¥      — $        —
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 219 219 1,978
Plan assets — — —
Net amount of liability and asset recognized 
 in the consolidated balance sheet ¥219 ¥219 $1,978
Net defined benefit liability ¥219 ¥219 $1,978
Net amount of liability and asset recognized 
 in the consolidated balance sheet ¥219 ¥219 $1,978

3) Retirement benefit expenses
Retirement benefit expenses calculated using the simplified method were ¥19 
million ($172 thousand) and ¥21 million for the years ended March 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively.

(4) Defined contribution pension plans
The amount to be paid by the Companies to the defined contribution pension 
plans was ¥889 million ($8,030 thousand) and ¥927 million for the years ended 
March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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(5) Funded status of the multiemployer employees’ pension fund plans
1) �The amount to be paid by the Companies to the multiemployer employ-

ees’ pension fund plans was ¥977 million ($8,825 thousand) and ¥975 
million for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The funded status of these plans at March 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows:
Millions of yen

2021

Tokyo 
Pharmaceutical 

Corporate 
Pension Fund Other

Plan assets ¥151,134 ¥  81,211 
Total of actuarial obligation and
 minimum actuarial reserve 150,361 102,699
Funded (unfunded) employees’
 retirement benefits ¥       773 ¥(21,488)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2021

Tokyo 
Pharmaceutical 

Corporate 
Pension Fund Other

Plan assets $1,365,134 $  733,547
Total of actuarial obligation and 
 minimum actuarial reserve 1,358,152 927,640
Funded (unfunded) employees’ 
 retirement benefits $       6,982 $(194,093)

Millions of yen

2020

Tokyo 
Pharmaceutical 

Corporate
 Pension Fund Other

Plan assets ¥157,064 ¥  85,616
Total of actuarial obligation and 
 minimum actuarial reserve 151,841 103,743
Funded (unfunded) employees’ 
 retirement benefits ¥    5,223 ¥(18,127)

2) Percentage of plan assets ascribable to contributions by the Companies
The percentage of the assets of each of these plans ascribable to contributions by 
the Companies at March 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

2021 2020
Tokyo Pharmaceutical Corporate Pension Fund 14.0% 12.1%
Other 8.8 9.3

17. PLEDGED ASSETS
The following assets were pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2021 and 2020.

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 
dollars (Note 1)

Years ended March 31 2021 2020 2021
Cash and deposits ¥860 ¥860 $7,768

	 The liabilities associated with the pledged assets as of March 31, 2021 and 
2020 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 
dollars (Note 1)

March 31 2021 2020 2021
Notes and accounts payable-trade ¥20,598 ¥22,575 $186,054 

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Companies were contingently liable as guarantors for loans of unconsolidated 
subsidiaries, associates and others in the amount of ¥1,807 million ($16,322 
thousand) and ¥2,269 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

19. NET ASSETS
Under the Japanese Companies Act, the entire amount paid for new shares is 
required to be designated as common stock. However, a company may, by a 
resolution of the Board of Directors, designate an amount not exceeding one-half 
of the price of the new shares as additional paid-in capital, which is included in 
capital surplus.
	 Under the Japanese Companies Act, in cases where a dividend distribution 
of surplus is made, the smaller of an amount equal to 10% of the dividend or the 
excess, if any, of 25% of common stock over the total of additional paid-in capital 
and the legal earnings reserve must be set aside as additional paid-in capital or a 
legal earnings reserve. The legal earnings reserve is included in retained earn-
ings in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
	 Under the Japanese Companies Act, the legal earnings reserve and addi-
tional paid-in capital could be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit, or could be 
capitalized by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.
	 Additional paid-in capital and the legal earnings reserve may not be distribut-
ed as dividends. Under the Japanese Companies Act, however, all additional paid-
in capital and all legal earnings reserve may be transferred to other capital surplus 
and retained earnings, respectively, which are potentially available for dividends.
	 The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as dividends is 
calculated based on the non-consolidated financial statements of the Company 
in accordance with the Japanese Companies Act.
	 At the Board of Directors meeting held on May 13, 2021, cash dividends 
amounting to ¥4,409 million ($39,825 thousand) were approved. Such appro-
priations have not been accrued in the consolidated financial statements as of 
March 31, 2021.

20. INCOME TAXES
Income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of income comprise 
corporation, enterprise and inhabitants’ taxes. The aggregated statutory tax rates 
was approximately 30.6% for the years ended March 31, 2020.
	 The reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2021 is not presented 
because the difference between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate 
was less than or equal to 5%.
	 The reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate of 
the Companies for financial statement purposes for the years ended March 31, 
2020 was as follows:
Year ended March 31 2020
Statutory tax rate 30.6%
Permanent differences  
 (Non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income) (22.6)
Per capita inhabitant taxes 0.5
Valuation allowance (0.2)
Effects of consolidated eliminations 22.6
Equity in earnings of affiliates (1.2)
Other, net 2.5
Effective tax rate 32.2%
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	 Significant components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities of the Com-
panies at March 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 
dollars (Note 1)

March 31 2021 2020 2021
Deferred tax assets:
	 Allowance for doubtful accounts ¥       411 ¥      477 $      3,712 
	 Impairment loss 1,932 1,492 17,451
	 Loss on valuation of investment securities 2,122 1,738 19,167
	 Accrued enterprise taxes 651 1,045 5,880
	 Provision for bonuses 2,318 2,819 20,938
	 Net defined benefit liability 5,479 6,398 49,490
	 Tax loss carry forward 1,163 554 10,505
	 Business investments 3,176 2,448 28,688
	 Other 6,597 6,787 59,588 
	 Subtotal 23,849 23,758 215,419 
	 Valuation allowance (4,446) (4,120) (40,159)
Total deferred tax assets ¥  19,403 ¥ 19,638 $  175,260 
Deferred tax liabilities:
	� Reserve for advanced depreciation of 

 non-current assets (5,289) (5,349) (47,773)
	� Valuation difference on available-for- 

 sale securities (34,713) (32,035) (313,549)
	 Other (7,618) (6,306) (68,811)
Total deferred tax liabilities ¥(47,620) ¥(43,690) $(430,133)
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥(28,217) ¥(24,052) $(254,873)

21. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Amounts reclassified to net income (loss) in the current period that were recog-
nized in other comprehensive income in the current or previous periods and tax 
effects for each component of other comprehensive income were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 
dollars (Note 1)

2021 2020 2021
Valuation difference on available-for-sale 
 securities:
	 Increase during the year ¥  20,073 ¥  4,788 $  181,312
	 Reclassification adjustments (10,504) (359) (94,879)
	 Amount before income tax effect 9,569 4,429 86,433
	 Tax effect (2,951) (1,418) (26,655)
	 Sub-total, net of tax 6,618 3,011 59,778
Deferred gains or losses on hedges:
	 Increase (decrease) during the year 7 12 63
	� Adjustments of acquisition cost  

 of assets (12) (7) (108)
	 Amount before income tax effect (5) 5 (45)
	 Tax effect 2 (2) 18
	 Sub-total, net of tax (3) 3 (27)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:
	 Increase (decrease) during the year 3,190 (975) 28,814
	 Reclassification adjustments (176) 385 (1,590)
	 Amount before income tax effect 3,014 (590) 27,224
	 Tax effect (1,010) 208 (9,123)
	 Sub-total, net of tax 2,004 (382) 18,101
Share of other comprehensive income of 
 entities accounted for using equity method
	 Increase (decrease) during the year 345 (308) 3,116
		  Total other comprehensive income ¥    8,964 ¥  2,324 $    80,968

22. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(1) General information about reportable segments
The Company’s reportable segments are components of the Company for which 
separate financial information is available, and whose operating results are 
reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors in order to determine allocation of 
resources to segments and assess segment performance.
	 The Company is aiming to create a new, customer-oriented business model, 
and therefore has three reportable segments by customer: the Prescription 
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business; the Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC 
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business; and the Animal Health Products and Food 
Processing Raw Materials Wholesale Business.
	 The Prescription Pharmaceutical Wholesale Business conducts wholesale 
business for hospitals, clinics, dispensing pharmacies and other customers.
	 The Cosmetics, Daily Necessities and OTC Pharmaceutical Wholesale Busi-
ness conducts wholesale business for drugstores, home centers, convenience 
stores, supermarkets and other customers. The Animal Health Products and Food 
Processing Raw Materials Wholesale Business conduct wholesale business for 
animal hospitals, livestock or fisheries vendors, food processing manufactures 
and other customers.

(2) �Basis of measurement for reported segment profit or loss, segment 
assets, segment liabilities and other material items

The accounting methods for the reported business segments are generally the 
same as those in 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
	 Segment profit corresponds to the operating profit of the consolidated state-
ments of income. Intersegment sales and transfer prices are based on market 
prices.

(3) �Information about reported segment profit or loss, segment assets, 
segment liabilities and other material items

Segment information as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 was as 
follows:

Millions of yen

Year ended  
March 31 2021

Prescription 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Cosmetics, Daily 
Necessities  

and OTC 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Animal Health 
Products and 

Food Processing 
Raw Materials 

Wholesale 
Business Total

Adjustments 
(Note 1)

Consolidated 
(Note 2)

Net sales:
(1) �Sales to 

outside 
customers ¥2,109,055 ¥1,032,927 ¥69,143 ¥3,211,125 ¥          — ¥3,211,125

(2) �Intersegment 
sales and 
transfers 3,400 349 3 3,752 (3,752) —

Total sales 2,112,455 1,033,276 69,146 3,214,877 (3,752) 3,211,125
Segment profit 
 (Operating profit) ¥     10,523 ¥     25,475 ¥  2,309 ¥     38,307 ¥     269 ¥     38,576
Segment assets ¥1,143,993 ¥   431,466 ¥26,338 ¥1,601,797 ¥78,138 ¥1,679,935
Other
Depreciation ¥       8,326 ¥       5,640 ¥     244 ¥     14,210 ¥       94 ¥     14,304
Amortization of 
	 goodwill 255 69 — 324 — 324
Investment  
	 in affiliates  
	 accounted for  
	 using the equity  
	 method 56,925 — — 56,925 — 56,925
Capital  
	 expenditures 10,699 5,353 89 16,141 1 16,142
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Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Year ended  
March 31 2021

Prescription 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business Total

Adjustments 
(Note 1)

Consolidated 
(Note 2)

Net sales:
(1) �Sales to 

outside 
customers $19,050,266 $9,330,025 $624,542 $29,004,833 $            — $29,004,833

(2) �Intersegment 
sales and 
transfers 30,711 3,152 27 33,890 (33,890) —

Total sales 19,080,977 9,333,177 624,569 29,038,723 (33,890) 29,004,833
Segment profit 
 (Operating profit)$       95,050 $   230,106 $  20,856 $     346,012 $    2,430 $     348,442
Segment assets $10,333,240 $3,897,263 $237,901 $14,468,404 $705,790 $15,174,194
Other
Depreciation $       75,205 $     50,944 $    2,204 $     128,353 $      849 $     129,202
Amortization of 
	 goodwill 2,304 623 — 2,927 — 2,927
Investment 
	 in affiliates 
	 accounted for 
	 using the equity 
	 method 514,181 — — 514,181 — 514,181
Capital 
	 expenditures 96,640 48,351 804 145,795 9 145,804

Notes:
1. Adjustments were as follows:
	 (1) �The ¥3,752 million ($33,890 thousand) adjustment of net sales represents elimination of 

intersegment transactions.
	 (2) �The ¥269 million ($2,430 thousand) adjustment of segment profit represents elimination 

of intersegment transactions of ¥2,736 million ($24,713 thousand), minus corporate ex-
penses of ¥2,467 million ($22,283 thousand) that are not allocated to reportable segments.

	 (3) �The ¥78,138 million ($705,790 thousand) adjustment of segment assets represents cor-
porate assets of ¥80,706 million ($728,986 thousand) that are not allocated to reportable 
segments, minus elimination of intersegment transactions of ¥2,568 million ($23,196 
thousand).

	 (4) �The ¥94 million ($849 thousand) adjustment of depreciation represents corporate depre-
ciation expenses that are not allocated to reportable segments.

	 (5) �The ¥1 million ($9 thousand) adjustment of capital expenditures represents corporate 
assets that are not allocated to reportable segments.

2. �Segment profit is adjusted to operating profit as reported in the consolidated statements of income.

	 Segment information as of and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 was 
as follows:

Millions of yen

Year ended  
March 31 2020

Prescription 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Cosmetics, Daily 
Necessities  

and OTC 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Animal Health 
Products and 

Food Processing 
Raw Materials 

Wholesale 
Business Total

Adjustments 
(Note 1)

Consolidated 
(Note 2)

Net sales:
(1) �Sales to 

outside 
customers ¥2,138,687 ¥1,045,991 ¥68,401 ¥3,253,079 ¥         — ¥3,253,079

(2) �Intersegment 
sales and 
transfers 3,141 422 4 3,567 (3,567) —

Total sales 2,141,828 1,046,413 68,405 3,256,646 (3,567) 3,253,079
Segment profit 
 (Operating profit) ¥     26,055 ¥     24,681 ¥  1,979 ¥     52,715 ¥     395 ¥     53,110
Segment assets ¥1,143,160 ¥   413,817 ¥25,211 ¥1,582,188 ¥62,091 ¥1,644,279
Other
Depreciation ¥       8,642 ¥       5,058 ¥     247 ¥     13,947 ¥     149 ¥     14,096
Amortization of 
	 goodwill 255 138 63 456 — 456
Investment 
	 in affiliates 
	 accounted for 
	 using the equity 
	 method 53,909 — — 53,909 — 53,909
Capital 
	 expenditures 10,333 18,792 168 29,293 29 29,322

Notes:
1. Adjustments were as follows:
	 (1) �The ¥3,567 million adjustment of net sales represents elimination of intersegment 

transactions.
	 (2) �The ¥395 million adjustment of segment profit represents elimination of intersegment 

transactions of ¥2,704 million, minus corporate expenses of ¥2,309 million that are not 
allocated to reportable segments.

	 (3) �The ¥62,091 million adjustment of segment assets represents corporate assets of ¥66,247 
million that are not allocated to reportable segments, minus elimination of intersegment 
transactions of ¥4,156 million.

	 (4) �The ¥149 million adjustment of depreciation represents corporate depreciation expenses 
that are not allocated to reportable segments.

	 (5) �The ¥29 million adjustment of capital expenditures represents corporate assets that are 
not allocated to reportable segments.

2. �Segment profit is adjusted to operating profit as reported in the consolidated statements of income.

(4) Information related to reportable segments
1) Information about products and services
The information about products and services is included in (3) Information about 
reported segment profit or loss, segment assets, segment liabilities and other 
material items.

2) Information about geographic areas
a. Net sales
Information about net sales was not shown since sales to outside customers in Japan 
were more than 90% of net sales presented in the consolidated statements of income.

b. Property, plant and equipment
Information about property, plant and equipment was not shown since there are 
no property, plant and equipment outside Japan.

3) Information about major customers
Information about major customers was not shown since net sales to any single 
customer were less than 10% of the amount of net sales presented in the consol-
idated statements of income.
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(5) �Information on impairment loss of non-current assets  
by reportable segment

Millions of yen

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Prescription 
Pharmaceutical 

Wholesale 
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health 
Products and 

Food Processing 
Raw Materials 

Wholesale 
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Impairment loss of 
 non-current assets ¥1,580 ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥1,580

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Prescription
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Impairment loss of 
 non-current assets $14,272 $— $— $— $14,272

Millions of yen

Year ended 
March 31, 2020

Prescription
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Impairment loss of 
 non-current assets ¥856 ¥18 ¥12 ¥— ¥886

(6) �Information on amortization of goodwill and unamortized balance by 
reportable segment

Millions of yen

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

Prescription
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Amortization of 
 goodwill ¥255 ¥69 ¥— ¥— ¥324
Unamortized 
 balance 860 — — — 860

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Year ended  
March 31, 2021

Prescription
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Amortization of 
 goodwill $2,304 $623 $— $— $2,927
Unamortized 
 balance 7,768 — — — 7,768

Millions of yen

Year ended  
March 31, 2020

Prescription
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Cosmetics, Daily
Necessities

and OTC
Pharmaceutical

Wholesale
Business

Animal Health
Products and

Food Processing
Raw Materials

Wholesale
Business

Eliminations  
and  

Corporate Total
Amortization of 
 goodwill ¥    255 ¥138 ¥63 ¥— ¥   456
Unamortized 
 balance 1,115 69 — — 1,184

23. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Transactions between the Companies and a principal shareholder of the Company 
which owned more than a 10% interest for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 
2020 are not applicable.

24. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
CASH DIVIDENDS
On May 13, 2021 the Board of Directors approved the payment of a cash divi-
dend of ¥21.00 ($0.190) per share to shareholders of record at March 31, 2021, 
for a total payment of ¥4,409 million ($39,825 thousand).
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Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

Company Name / Location
Share Capital

(Millions of  
yen, unless

otherwise noted)

Voting Right 
Percentage 

(%)
Representative Director* Date Established Business 

(Main areas of business)

Consolidated subsidiaries
MEDICEO CORPORATION
(Chuo-ku, Tokyo)

100 100.0 Yasuhiro Choufuku,
Representative Director, President and CEO

April 2004 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, medical 
equipment and supplies, clinical diagnostics, etc. 
(Hokkaido, Tohoku, Kanto, Chubu, and Kinki areas)

EVERLTH Co., Ltd.
(Minami-ku, Hiroshima)

1,510 100.0 Takuro Hasegawa,
Representative Director, President  and CEO

April 1950 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, medical 
equipment and supplies, clinical diagnostics, etc.
(Chugoku area)

ATOL CO., LTD.
(Higashi-ku, Fukuoka)

3,965 100.0 Shinjiro Watanabe,
Representative Director, President  and CEO 

January 1947 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, medical 
equipment and supplies, clinical diagnostics, etc.
(Kyushu and Okinawa areas)

SPLine Corporation
(Chuo-ku, Tokyo)

100 100.0 Atsushi Takumiya,
Representative Director, President  and CEO

May 2016 Distribution planning for specialty pharmaceuticals

MM CORPORATION
(Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo)

100 100.0 Hideaki Kitauchi,
Representative Director, President and CEO

January 1951 Sales of medical equipment and supplies, etc.

ASTEC Co., Ltd.
(Tsukuba-shi, Ibaraki)

10 100.0 Yoshitaka Ichiyanagi,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

July 1992 Sales of medical equipment and supplies, etc.

MVC CO., LTD.
(Higashi-ku, Fukuoka)

100 100.0 Tadashi Hagiwara,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

November 2007 Sales of medical equipment and supplies, etc.

PharField Corporation
(Koto-ku, Tokyo)

300 100.0 Tsukasa Yamaguchi,
Representative Director, President and CEO

October 2020 Contract-based epidemiological studies, clinical  
studies, etc.

MEDIE Co., Ltd.
(Chuo-ku, Tokyo)

14 100.0 Shinji Endo,  
President and CEO

July 1980 Creation of a computerized medical supply database, 
creation of master product databases for medical facilities

M.I.C. (Medical Information College), INC.
(Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo)

10 100.0 Hiroshi Niwa,  
Representative Director and President

August 1984 Health insurance claims reviews, medical coding dispatch, 
outsourcing, and remote education

Medipal Insurance Service Co., Ltd.
(Chuo-ku, Kobe)

90 100.0 Hisatake Kato,  
Representative Director and President

February 1999 Non-life insurance agency, operations related to life 
insurance

PALTAC CORPORATION
(Chuo-ku, Osaka)

15,869 50.2 Seiichi Kasutani,  
Representative Director, President and COO

December 1928 Sale of cosmetics, daily necessities, and OTC 
pharmaceuticals

MP AGRO CO., LTD.
(Kitahiroshima-shi, Hokkaido)

44 100.0 Tomohiko Kimura,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

July 1956 Sales of animal health products, food additives, etc.

MEDIPAL FOODS CORPORATION
(Chuo-ku, Sapporo)

60 100.0 Takaharu Kayama,  
Representative Director and President

March 1965 Sales of food processing raw materials, food additives, etc.

Unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for by equity method
TOKIMO CO., LTD.
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo)

80 100.0 Mitsuo Sakiyama,  
Representative Director and President

June 1986 Cleaning management

Butsuryu 24, Inc.
(Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo) 

40 100.0 Kimihiko Tokushige,  
Representative Director and President

June 1998 Management and operation of distribution centers, 
commissioned delivery service, and worker dispatch

EVERLTH ODS Co., Ltd. 
(Minami-ku, Hiroshima)

10 100.0 Katsumi Yoshioka,  
Representative Director and President

April 1987 Management and operation of distribution centers, 
commissioned delivery service, and worker dispatch

class A Network Co., Ltd.
(Shibuya-ku, Tokyo)

10 70.0 Satoshi Akutsu,  
Representative Director and President

July 2006 Planning, management, administration, and product and 
service development for the Class A health dispensing 
pharmacies service brand

9 other companies

Affiliated companies accounted for by equity method
Qol Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Minato-ku, Tokyo)

5,786 23.1 Takashi Nakamura,  
Representative Director and President

October 1992 Operation of dispensing pharmacies

MC Healthcare, Inc.
(Minato-ku, Tokyo)

548 20.0 Masatoshi Kimura,  
Representative Director and President

April 2010 Operational support for hospitals

SHIKOKU YAKUGYO CO., LTD.
(Matsuyama-shi, Ehime)

831 20.0 Eiichiro Nakazawa,  
Representative Director and President

October 2004 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, medical 
equipment and supplies, clinical diagnostics, etc.
(Shikoku area)

YAKUJU HOLDINGS, Inc.
(Yamato-shi, Kanagawa)

75 40.0 Yuta Komori,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

July 2018 Operation of dispensing pharmacies

PRESUSCUBE Corporation
(Minato-ku, Tokyo)

100 49.0 Yuta Komori,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

July 2016 Management support and marketing support for 
dispensing pharmacies

JCR Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
(Ashiya-shi, Hyogo)

9,061 23.5 Shin Ashida, 
Chairman and President

September 1975 Manufacture and sales of prescription pharmaceutical 
products, etc.

Nobelpharma Co., Ltd.
(Chuo-ku, Tokyo)

11 20.0 Jin Shiomura,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

June 2003 Manufacture and sale of prescription pharmaceutical 
products, etc.

CARADA medica Inc.
(Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo)

3,228 34.4 Seitaro Sugawara,  
Representative Director

July 2015 Healthcare-related content distribution services

Doctorbook Inc.
(Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo)

183 23.0 Rihito Soma,  
Representative Director, President and CEO

December 2013 Various information provision services using the Internet, etc.

Sinopharm Group Beijing Huahong Co., Ltd.
(Beijing, China)

RMB 350 
million

20.0 Jiang Xiuchang, 
President

April 1998 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, etc.  
(Beijing, China)

Beijing Tianxingpuxin Bio-med 
Sinopharm Holding Co., Ltd. 
(Beijing, China)

RMB 100 
million

20.0 Jiang Xiuchang, 
President

July 2002 Sales of prescription pharmaceutical products, etc.  
(Beijing, China)

Affiliated companies not accounted for by equity method
KURAYA (USA) CORPORATION
(California, USA)

USD 300 
thousand

49.0 Gerry Shishido,  
Representative Director and President

July 1997 Import and export of medical supplies, etc.

OrphanPacific, Inc.
(Minato-ku, Tokyo) 100 34.0 Philippe Auvaro,  

Representative Director and President May 2012 Manufacture and sales of prescription pharmaceutical 
products, etc.

5 other companies

* As of July 1, 2021
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Corporate Data (As of March 31, 2021)

Corporate Name MEDIPAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION

Head Office 2-7-15, Yaesu, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-8461, 
Japan
Tel: 81-3-3517-5800 (Representative)
URL: https://www.medipal.co.jp/english

Founded October 8, 1898

Established May 6, 1923

Share Capital ¥22,398 million

Number of 
Employees

12,971 (Consolidated basis)

Stock Listing Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section

Ticker Code 7459

Trading Unit 100 shares

Transfer Agent 
for Common 
Stock

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

The General 
Meeting of 
Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders
is held annually in June.

Further 
Information

Public Relations Department
Tel: 81-3-3517-5171

Stock 
Information

Number of Shares Authorized:  � 900,000,000
Number of Outstanding Shares:� 244,524,496
Number of Shareholders:� 11,417

Stock Information (As of March 31, 2021)

Major Shareholders

Shareholders Shares Held 
(Thousands)

Shareholding 
Ratio (%)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 14,750 7.03

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account) 8,422 4.01

MEDICEO Employees Shareholders’ Association of MP Group 6,232 2.97

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Eisai Co., Ltd. Retirement Benefit 
Trust Account re-entrusted by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Ltd.)

5,095 2.43

Kobayashi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 5,074 2.42

Northern Trust Co. (AVFC) Re Silchester International Investors 
International Value Equity Trust (Standing proxy: Securities 
Services Department, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 
Corporation Limited, Tokyo Branch)

4,766 2.27

STATE STREET BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 505001  
(Standing proxy: Settlement & Clearing Services Department, 
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.)

4,655 2.22

Northern Trust Co. (AVFC) Re U.S. Tax Exempted Pension Funds 
(Standing proxy: Securities Services Department, The Hongkong 
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Tokyo Branch)

4,231 2.02

Custody Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account 7) 3,417 1.63

Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. as trustee for Daiichi Sankyo 
Company, Limited Retirement Benefit Trust Account re-entrusted 
by Mizuho Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

3,274 1.56

Notes:	
1. 	�The Company holds 34,561 thousand shares of  treasury shares, which are excluded 

from the major shareholders listed above.
2. 	�Shareholding ratio is calculated after subtracting treasury shares from the number of 

outstanding shares.
3. 	�Shares held as a percentage of total outstanding shares and shareholding ratio 

excluding treasury shares are rounded to the nearest hundredth.

Shareholder Composition

Foreign Investors
76,867 (thousand shares)

580 shareholders
31.44%

Financial Investors
53,963 (thousand shares)

43 shareholders
22.07%

Individuals and Others
44,560 (thousand shares)

10,539 shareholders
18.22%

Securities Companies
5,115 (thousand shares)
33 shareholders
2.09%

Other Domestic 
Corporations
29,455 (thousand shares)
221 shareholders
12.05%

Treasury Shares
34,561 (thousand shares)
1 shareholder
14.13%

Rating Information (As of August 20, 2021)

Rating firm Rating

Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I) A+

Note: �The above is an issuer rating. Issuer ratings are fixed symbols provided as information 
to investors regarding the overall ability of issuers to repay the financial obligations 
they have incurred, and the degree of certainty regarding payment of individual debts.

Selected for the JPX-Nikkei 400 Index (As of August 31, 2021)

Since fiscal 2014, the MEDIPAL Group has been selected as 
JPX-Nikkei Index 400 composed of companies with high appeal 
for investors, which meet requirements of global investment 
standards, such as efficient use of capital and investor-focused 
management perspectives. Group company PALTAC has also 
been selected as JPX-Nikkei Index 400.
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MEDIPAL is a distribution group that handles pharmaceuticals and daily necessities.

We are connecting pharmaceutical companies with 240,000 locations of  healthcare institutions, 
dispensing pharmacies, and drug stores in every town and village all over the country.

Our motto is to reliably deliver required products at the required time in just the required amount.

This is all the more important when natural disasters strike.

The MEDIPAL Group has gained experience in previous major natural disasters,  
including the Great Hanshin-Awaji Earthquake, and has taken many initiatives to  
build distribution channels that are resilient even in times of  natural disaster.

In the midst of  terrible hardships during the Great East Japan Earthquake and  
the series of  earthquakes in Kumamoto, we were able to deliver necessary items to the affected areas.  
This was entirely because we always keep ourselves ready for emergency situations.

Because Japan is a land of  natural disasters,  
MEDIPAL must make full preparations for dealing with a wide range of  disaster scenarios.

For us at MEDIPAL, delivery of  pharmaceuticals is a vital part of  the lifelines of  society.

We are working to ensure that daily life is not interrupted “when an emergency occurs.”

Our unseen challenges will continue.

MEDICEO CORPORATION / EVERLTH Co., Ltd. / ATOL CO., LTD. / SPLine Corporation / MM CORPORATION /ASTEC Co., Ltd.

MVC CO., LTD / PharField Corporation / MEDIE Co., Ltd. / M.I.C. (Medical Information College), INC. / Medipal Insurance Service Co., Ltd. / PALTAC CORPORATION

MP AGRO CO., LTD. / MEDIPAL FOODS CORPORATION / YONYAKU CO., LTD. / Nakazawa Ujike Yakugyo K.K.  / Toshichi Inc.

Our mission is to deliver  
pharmaceuticals in Japan.

Our Mission
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